# **Bibliography of Works**

by Francis M. O'Donnell<sup>1</sup> (subject to revision)

# Media where contributed articles, interviews, or citations have been published:

Abbey Press (St. Meinrad, Indiana), ABC (Sydney), Academica Press (Washington DC), Atlantic Council (Washington DC), APA (Baku), Associated Press (AP, New York), Azertac (Baku), Azeri Daily (Baku), AzerNews (Baku), Bildiriler (Ankara), Business Ukraine (Kyiv), Byline Times (London), Cadmus (Journal of the World Academy of Art and Science), Charism - SMOM Newsletter (Bratislava), Caliber (Baku), Commerce (Kyiv), CorD (Belgrade), CNN (Belgrade), Danas (Belgrade), Den (Kyiv), Donegal News (Letterkenny), East-West Bridge (Belgrade), Edipresse Ukraine (Kyiv), EdNews (Baku), El Norte de Castilla (Valladolid), Expresso (Lisbon), FES (Berlin), Financial Times (London), FOGGS Papers (Brussels), ForUm (Kyiv), Global Policy Analysis (Baku), Haqqin (Baku), HB (Novoe Vremya/New Voice) (Kyiv), History Ireland (Dublin), Horizons - Journal of International Relations and Sustainable Development (Belgrade), Independent (Dublin), Indigenous Development International (Cambridge), Inosmi (Moscow), International Herald Tribune (New York), Irish-Arab News (Dublin), Ireland's Genealogical Gazette (Dublin), Irish Manuscripts Commission (Dublin), Irish Times (Dublin), JTA-Jewish Telegraphic Agency (New York), Journal of the Genealogical Society of Ireland (Dublin), Journal of the Kerry Archaeological and Historical Society (Tralee), Katoikos (Madrid), KIC (Kyiv), KLIX.ba (Sarajevo), Kyiv Independent (Kyiv), Kyiv Post (Kyiv), Kyiv Weekly (Kyiv), Kyiv State TV (Kyiv), Kurier (Kyiv), Le Monde (Paris), Le Sahel-Nation (Niamey), Life & Peace Institute (Stockholm), LuxTV (Bratislava), Media-DK (Kyiv), Metropole (Vienna), MENAFN-Trend (Baku), NE Global (London), New Europa (Brussels), Newstalk (Dublin), NI (Belgrade), NIN (Belgrade), NV Media (Kyiv), Obschaya Tetrad (Moscow), Ó Domhnaill Abú (Donegal), Pax Christi International (Brussels), Pobjeda (Podgorica), Politika (Belgrade), Raidio na Gaeltachta (Dublin), Reliefweb (New York & Geneva), RTÉ News (Dublin), RTS (Belgrade), Sapere Online (Riga), Sunday Tribune (Dublin), SwissInfo/SBC (SRG-SSR Geneva), The Baltic Times (Riga), The Irish Sword (Dublin), TK KBS (Bratislava), TodayFM (Dublin), Trend News Agency (Baku), Turkish Daily News (Ankara), Tyrconnell-Fyngal Publications (Dalkey), UCD Connections (Dublin), Ukraine Diplomatic (Kyiv), UN (New York), UNIS (Vienna), UNU Press (Tokyo).

# **Table of Contents**

	qty.	page
1. Books/papers	6	2
2. Lectures/webinars/panels moderated	22	2
3. Articles on current affairs published	35	5
4. Articles published in other historical or scholarly journals	10	9
5. Other personal publications	61	10
6. Global appeals/declarations co-drafted/co-signed	20	15
7. Personal contributions to and/or citations in other publications	97	18
8. UN System official documents published [coordinated/edited/finalised]	22	29
9. Research projects managed	5	31
10. Policy monographs & discussion papers written	17	32
11. Summary of other works - strategy/programme papers	13	33
12. Interviews with O'Donnell published or broadcast	53	34
13. Art, poetry and music (written, composed, unpublished)	2	39
14. Private authorship (non-professional, largely unpublished, pending)	7	40
Total works	370	

\_

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>All written by Amb. Francis M. O'Donnell, Fellow of the World Academy of Art and Science, unless otherwise attributed or qualified. This listing excludes most UN press releases. (July 2025)

## **BOOKS/PAPERS**

Memorialising Emigré Dignity - The Cultural Heritage of St. Anthony's College, Leuven, Anthology collection based on first webinar of the Irish College Leuven held online in October 2020; initiated and organised with David Grant, CEO, edited with co-authors Bernard Snoy et d'Oppuers, Micheál Mac Craith, Douglas O'Donell von Tyrconnell, Katharine Simms, Johan Verberckmoes, Luke McInerney, and Gearóid Ó Ceallaigh, published by Tyrconnell-Fyngal Publishing, Dalkey, 2025 (ISBN: 978-1-9162891-2-3) (108pp)

World Peace – Reclaiming the United Nations and its Ideals, published by the Foundation for Global Governance and Sustainability, Brussels, June 2025 (ISBN: 978-2-9603389-5-9) (10pp). https://www.foggs.org/wp-

content/uploads/2025/06/FrancisODonnell\_FOGGSPaper\_WorldPeaceReclaimingtheUNanditsIdeals.pdf

**Resolving the Israel-Palestine conundrum - a new era**, published by the Foundation for Global Governance and Sustainability, Brussels, November 2024 (ISBN: 978-2-9603389-4-2) (20pp). <a href="https://www.foggs.org/wp-">https://www.foggs.org/wp-</a>

content/uploads/2024/11/FrancisMODonnell\_Resolving\_the\_Israel\_Palestine\_Conundrum\_FOGGS\_Paper\_November\_2024.pdf

**Desperate Hope** – *Reflections on Survival Pathways for Civilisation*, presented to the 37<sup>th</sup> Annual Plenary Meeting of the InterAction Council, Valetta, May 2023, in support of its *Malta Declaration on Multilateral Solutions for a Better Future*. Tyrconnell-Fyngal Publishing, Dalkey (ISBN: 978-1-9162891-1-6) (103pp). Contents list & endorsements:

https://www.academia.edu/101326598/Desperate Hope Reflections on Survival Pathways for Civilisation

No Man's Land – *Selected Poetry & Art*, published by Tyrconnell-Fyngal Publications, Dalkey, 2020 (ISBN: 978-1-9162891-0-1) (108pp) NLI ref. <a href="https://catalogue.nli.ie/Record/vtls000820337">https://www.academia.edu/42201810/No Mans Land Selected Poetry and Art Extract</a>

**The O'Donnells of Tyrconnell** – *A Hidden Legacy*, published in the *Maunsel Irish Research Series*, by Academica Press, Washington, D.C., 2018 (ISBN: 978-1-6805347-4-0) (750pp.). Publisher: <a href="https://www.academicapress.com/node/330">https://www.academicapress.com/node/330</a>

## LECTURES/WEBINARS/PANELS (MODERATOR OR PARTICIPANT)

## **On Current Affairs**

**Redesigning Multilateralism and Global Governance,** World Academy of Art and Science, 22 July 2025 (panellist) <a href="https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=mR8zKwXL1vs&t=7875s">https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=mR8zKwXL1vs&t=7875s</a> [from 01:59:00 mark]

Turbulence of a World in Transition: The Context, Enabling Conditions and Symptoms, World Academy of Art and Science, 21 July 2025 (moderator) <a href="https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=MBQK7t0Aexo&t=3332s">https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=MBQK7t0Aexo&t=3332s</a> [from 00:55:00 mark] <a href="https://worldacademy.org/addressing-global-social-turbulences-sources-solutions/">https://worldacademy.org/addressing-global-social-turbulences-sources-solutions/</a>

The role of "middle powers" and citizens in balancing the international system. (participant in online discussion). Open Consultation online, hosted by Foundation for Global Governance & Sustainability, Brussels, 7 April 2025. https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=DZ9XZGrPwwc

**Israel, the UN and Gaza,** (participant in online discussion) inaugural Monday Open Consultation online, hosted by Foundation for Global Governance & Sustainability, Brussels, 4 November 2024. https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ezMy-wA8--o

Emerging global geopolitics and the UN | a UN Day discussion with the PRG. Discussion among a number of experienced former staff members of the UN and associated agencies of the broader UN system, collectively known as the Peacemaking Reflection Group (cofounder/participant), facilitated by the Foundation for Global Governance & Sustainability, Brussels. 25 October 2023. https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=TAzBHqyN15E

Nuclear Facilities As Military Targets – The Zaporizhzhia Case (participant). For the first time in history, a nuclear power plant became a military objective during a war. This also highlights the lack of a ratified global agreement or treaty on non-aggression to nuclear facilities, or of another type, whose destruction entails a great impact on the population. Presentation by nuclear expert Dr Alejandro Zurita and the subsequent discussion of the Peacemaking Reflection Group (PRG) of former UN system staff facilitated by the Foundation for Global Governance & Sustainability, Brussels. 25 September 2023. <a href="https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=fWzlseRvjP0">https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=fWzlseRvjP0</a>

The Search for Peace, Stability and Development in the Middle East, moderator for Panel 9 of the Xth Global Baku Forum, for the Nizami Ganjavi International Center, Baku, 11 March 2023. <a href="https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8VgXB-BPq50">https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8VgXB-BPq50</a>

Globalization & Rising Inequalities, discussed at IXth Global Baku Forum, Panel 8, moderated by O'Donnell, for the Nizami Ganjavi International Center, Baku, 18 June 2022. <a href="https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=E8GicrJpJP4">https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=E8GicrJpJP4</a> and reported via APA, Baku, 18 June 2022: <a href="https://apa.az/en/foreign-policy/globalization-and-growing-inequalities-discussed-at-ix-global-baku-forum-photo-378802">https://apa.az/en/foreign-policy/globalization-and-growing-inequalities-discussed-at-ix-global-baku-forum-photo-378802</a>

The End of Globalisation? lecture to the Indiana Council on World Affairs, in Great Decisions series focused on current events and topics covered by the Foreign Policy Association's *Great Decisions* briefing book. USA & Vienna, 23 March 2021.

The United Nations at 75: *Multilateralism and the Future of Global Governance*, panel talk to the Association of Schools of Political Studies of the Council of Europe, November 2020. <a href="https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=rT2ncLpcSGY">https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=rT2ncLpcSGY</a>

The UN at 75: Still fit for today's security challenges? (online Zoom conference, 11 November 2020) moderated by Zlatko Lagumdzija, former Prime Minister of Bosnia and Herzegovina, and with the participation of Francis O'Donnell along with the fmr. Presidents of Mauritius, Latvia, fmr. Director General of ISESCO (Saudi Arabia), fmr. Minister of Family and Population (Egypt), Secretary General/NGIC (Azerbaijan), Published by the Nizami Ganjavi International Center, Baku, 11 Nov. 2020. https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=E5eilH6kYaY

**Leadership Challenges in Post-COVID19 Recovery** (online Zoom, moderated by Rovshan Muradov, Secretary-General of the NGIC, and with participation of three former Prime Ministers, and O'Donnell; published by the Nizami Ganjavi International Center, Baku/online, July 2020. <a href="https://www.facebook.com/watch/live/?ref=watch">https://www.facebook.com/watch/live/?ref=watch</a> permalink&v=287091152511520

The Future is Now, statement delivered on Panel 4 at the Berlin Conference themed *In Search of Lost Universalism*, under the auspices of the Association of Schools of Political Studies of the Council of Europe, Berlin, 14 December 2018. https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=esDAigHIcHc

Глобализация и общество - Globalisation and Society, based on O'Donnell's guest lectures on Globalisation and Multilateralism in Helsinki and Berlin under auspices of the Association of Schools of Political Studies of the Council of Europe and published by the Moscow School of Civic Education (Московская школа гражданского просвещения - Глобализация и общество ) in its quarterly journal, "Общая тетрадь" (Obschaya Tetrad, Bulletin of the School of Civic Education), no. 3-4 (75) (pp. 34–51) Moscow, 2018 (ISBN 978-5-93895-120-4). https://www.academia.edu/42187648/%D0%93%D0%BB%D0%BE%D0%B1%D0%B0%D0%BB%D0%BB%D0%B8%D0%B8%D0%B8%D0%BE%D0%BB%D0%BE%D0%B1%D0%B1%D0%B1%D1%89%D0%B5%D1%81%D1%82%D0%B2%D0%BE\_Globalization\_and\_Society\_in\_Russia\_n\_

**Situation in Ukraine: Former UN Co-ordinator in Ukraine,** Irish parliamentary briefing and Q&A contribution of O'Donnell to joint debate of the Joint Committee on Foreign Affairs and Trade (Oireachtas/Irish Parliament), published by Houses of the Oireachtas, Dublin 9 April 2014. <a href="https://www.oireachtas.ie/en/debates/debate/joint\_committee\_on\_foreign\_affairs\_and\_trade/2014-04-09/3/">https://www.oireachtas.ie/en/debates/debate/joint\_committee\_on\_foreign\_affairs\_and\_trade/2014-04-09/3/</a>

**Business UN usual: agents of changes,** O'Donnell lecture to the NaUKMA students, focussing on corruption in general and specifically corruption problem in Ukraine, its causes, nature and possible solution methods, published by the National University of Kyiv-Mohyla Academy, Kyiv, 17 October 2006. <a href="https://dfc.ukma.edu.ua/news/213">https://dfc.ukma.edu.ua/news/213</a>

## On Historical/Genealogical Matters

**Heraldic Heritage** – **Heuristics or Hermeneutics**, online lecture for the Genealogical Society of Ireland, Dublin, 18 May 2024. <a href="https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=1cqqTI5mi\_Q">https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=1cqqTI5mi\_Q</a>

Another Wild Goose – An O'Donnell in Egypt, an unfortunate romantic, online lecture for the Genealogical Society of Ireland, on St. Valentine's Eve, 13 February 2024. <a href="https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=uvJX5vhDWl4">https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=uvJX5vhDWl4</a>

The O'Donnells of Tyrconnell - Dynasty, Lineages & their Monuments, lecture to The University of the Third Age (DLDK), Dublin, 1 February 2022. https://www.u3adldk.ie/events.php?time=past

**The O'Donnells of Tyrconnell -** *A Hidden Legacy*, lecture to the Genealogical Society of Ireland, Dublin, 10 August 2021. https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=gNLecCX 86E

Memorialising Émigré Dignity: *The Cultural Heritage of St Anthony's College, Leuven*, initiator and co-organiser of first webinar of the Irish College Leuven, Belgium, 21 October 2020. https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=oz6uZz1U3jg (booklet to follow for publication in 2025)

Une famille partie avec les "Oies Sauvages" oubliée - Les comtes O'Donnell en France, ou le passage de l'ancienne chevalerie militaire à la haute fonction publique, lecture delivered under auspices of Professor Eric Mension-Rigau (Sorbonne Université) in his seminar "Anthropologie sociale et culturelle, et sociétés, cultures, représentations", under theme "L'apport des recherches généalogiques à l'histoire Culturelle"

https://www.academia.edu/42196931/Une famille partie avec les Oies Sauvages oubli%C3% A9e Les comtes O Donnell en France ou le passage de 1 ancienne chevalerie militaire % C3%A0 la haute fonction publique, Sorbonne University, Paris 2018.

#### ARTICLES ON CURRENT AFFAIRS PUBLISHED

**Root Causes and Deep Drivers of Global Turbulence,** *Cadmus Journal*, Volume 5, Issue 4, published by the World Academy of Art and Science, 10 July 2025. <a href="https://www.cadmusjournal.org/article/volume-5-issue-4/root-causes-and-deep-drivers-global-turbulence">https://www.cadmusjournal.org/article/volume-5-issue-4/root-causes-and-deep-drivers-global-turbulence</a>

**UN Charter and Restoring Peace** (Letter to the Editor), *Irish Times*, 25 June 2025. <a href="https://www.irishtimes.com/opinion/letters/2025/06/25/letters-to-the-editor-june-25th-on-restoring-peace-subsidising-house-prices-and-us-student-visa-rules/">https://www.irishtimes.com/opinion/letters/2025/06/25/letters-to-the-editor-june-25th-on-restoring-peace-subsidising-house-prices-and-us-student-visa-rules/</a>

**Liberation and Freedom – or Global Rot?** published on Academia.edu, Vienna, June 2025. https://www.academia.edu/129895772/Liberation and Freedom or Global Rot

A world in disarray – we can do better than this, published by the Foundation for Global Governance and Sustainability, in Katoikos-World, Brussels, 10 December 2023. <a href="https://katoikos.world/editorials-op-eds/op-ed/a-world-in-disarray-we-can-do-better-than-this.html">https://katoikos.world/editorials-op-eds/op-ed/a-world-in-disarray-we-can-do-better-than-this.html</a> and on <a href="https://www.academia.edu/111057840/A">https://www.academia.edu/111057840/A</a> world in disarray we can do better than this

## Desperate Hope - How Our Civilization Can Survive and Thrive

article in Horizons – Journal of International Relations and Sustainable Development, Centre for International Relations and Sustainable Development, Belgrade, Issue No. 24, Summer 2023. <a href="https://www.cirsd.org/sr-latn/horizons/horizons-summer-2023--issue-no24/desperate-hope-https://www.academia.edu/107032928/How Our Civilization Can Survive and Thrive">https://www.academia.edu/107032928/How Our Civilization Can Survive and Thrive</a>

**Russia is less than its myths**, published by the Foundation for Global Governance and Sustainability, in Katoikos-World, Brussels, 28 January 2023. https://katoikos.world/analysis/russia-is-less-than-its-myths-and-the-truth-will-set-its-peoples-

free.html

**Neutral but not neutered: Ireland's security needs to be nurtured,** published by Nova Era Global, NE Global Media Ltd., London, UK on 14 December 2022.

 $\underline{https://www.neglobal.eu/neutered-but-not-neutral-but-not-neutered-irelands-security-needs-to-benurtured/}$ 

and on:

https://www.academia.edu/92901535/Neutral\_not\_neutered\_Irelands\_security\_needs\_to\_be\_nurt\_ured

Почему мир должен помочь не только Украине - Как международное сообщество может подготовиться к постпутинской России (Why the world should help not only Ukraine - How the international community can prepare for a post-Putin Russia), published online by Sapere Online, 14 November 2022.

https://sapere.online/frensis-o-donnell-pochemu-mir-dolzhen-pomoch-ne-tolko-ukraine/

Appeal to G20 to end Russian invasions and energise global reforms and multilateralism (authored in anticipation of G-20 Summit, and placed on Avaaz, 12 November 2022. <a href="https://secure.avaaz.org/community">https://secure.avaaz.org/community</a> petitions/en/the g20 summit leaders with two thirds of the worl appeal to g20 to end russian invasions and energise global reforms and multilater alism/

Пора готовится к тому, какой будет Россия после Путина (Russian); Час готуватися до того, якою буде Росія після Путіна (Ukrainian), published online by NV Media (Novoe Vremya/New Voice) of Media-DK Publishing House LLC, Ukraine, 11 November 2022. <a href="https://nv.ua/opinion/voyna-v-ukraine-kakoy-budet-rossiya-posle-putina-poslednie-novosti-">https://nv.ua/opinion/voyna-v-ukraine-kakoy-budet-rossiya-posle-putina-poslednie-novosti-</a>

50283186.html

https://www.academia.edu/90279825/The\_international\_community\_must\_prepare\_for\_a\_post\_P utin\_Russia

**The International Community must prepare for a post-Putin Russia**, article published online by the Atlantic Council, Washington DC, 7 November 2022

https://www.atlanticcouncil.org/blogs/ukrainealert/the-international-community-must-prepare-for-a-post-putin-russia/ also on Academia.edu:

https://www.academia.edu/90279825/The international community must prepare for a post P utin\_Russia

**Nine months is enough**, published by the Foundation for Global Governance and Sustainability, in Katoikos-World, Brussels, 3 November 2022.

https://katoikos.world/analysis/nine-months-is-enough.html

also published as headline article in NE Global, 4 November 2022, published by Nova Era Global, NE Global Media Ltd., London, UK <a href="https://www.neglobal.eu/nine-months-is-enough/https://www.academia.edu/90169669/Nine">https://www.academia.edu/90169669/Nine</a> months is enough

Emergency now: Urgent UN action is required for Ukraine, New Europe, 11 March 2022 <a href="https://web.archive.org/web/20230318114931/https://www.neweurope.eu/article/emergency-now-urgent-un-action-is-required-for-ukraine/">https://www.neweurope.eu/article/emergency-now-urgent-un-action-is-required-for-ukraine/</a>

What next for Ukraine? Just do it! Robust implementation of UN General Assembly Resolution ESS -11/1, published by Nizami Ganjavi International Centre, Baku, 8 March 2022. https://nizamiganjavi-ic.org/en/statement/5

**Urgent UN Action is Required for Ukraine,** published by Nova Era Global, NE Global Media Ltd., London, UK, 11 March 2022. <a href="https://www.neglobal.eu/emergency-now-urgent-un-action-is-required-for-ukraine/">https://www.neglobal.eu/emergency-now-urgent-un-action-is-required-for-ukraine/</a> and <a href="https://www.academia.edu/74228589/Emergency">https://www.academia.edu/74228589/Emergency</a> now Urgent UN action required for Ukraine

**UN must impose a no-fly zone over Ukraine**, article in *The Kyiv Independent*, 10 March 2022 https://kyivindependent.com/un-must-impose-a-no-fly-zone-over-ukraine/

Russian Roulette – the Kremlin's game in Ukraine, Metropole Vienna, February 2022. <a href="https://www.academia.edu/74230331/Russian\_Roulette\_the\_Kremlins\_Game\_in\_Ukraine">https://www.academia.edu/74230331/Russian\_Roulette\_the\_Kremlins\_Game\_in\_Ukraine</a> and later by East-West Bridge, Belgrade, 7 March 2022 <a href="https://www.ewb.rs/editone.aspx?id=615">https://www.ewb.rs/editone.aspx?id=615</a>

**Missing in Action: The Real America**, published by *Metropole*, Vienna, 14 January 2021, also published on www.academia.edu, October 2020

https://www.academia.edu/44408196/Missing in Action The Real America

Leadership challenges in Post-COVID19 Recovery, published on Academia.edu <a href="https://www.academia.edu/43738594/Leadership\_Challenges\_in\_Post\_COVID\_19\_Recovery">https://www.academia.edu/43738594/Leadership\_Challenges\_in\_Post\_COVID\_19\_Recovery</a> and as an article in Global Policy Analysis, 3rd edition, September–October 2020, published by the Nizami Ganjavi International Center, Baku, Azerbaijan, (pp. 16–17) <a href="https://nizamiganjavi-ic.org/uploads/journal/8/e5af95e293fa9836ed9e1c38da29bace.pdf">https://nizamiganjavi-ic.org/uploads/journal/8/e5af95e293fa9836ed9e1c38da29bace.pdf</a>

Coronavirus - An Opportunity for Global Governance Reform, published in Metropole, Austria's English language magazine, Vienna, 4 April 2020, replicated here: <a href="https://www.academia.edu/126142767/Coronavirus An Opportunity for Global Governance Reform">https://www.academia.edu/126142767/Coronavirus An Opportunity for Global Governance Reform</a>

Cited also in

COVID-19 Pandemisi Andemisi, Devlet ve Yasam Hakki \* (COVID-19 Pandemics, State and Right to Life), by Dr. Dikran M. Zenginkuzucu, Doç. Dr., İstanbul Esenyurt Üniversitesi İYBF, Siyaset Bilimi ve Uluslararas iliskiler (ing) Bölümü, published in Soysal Bilimler Araştırmaları Dergisi — Journal of Social Sciences Researches, a scientific publication of Tokat Gaziosmanpasa University, Institute of Graduate Studies, Tokat City, Turkey, December 2021.

https://www.researchgate.net/publication/357527011\_COVID-19 Pandemisi Devlet ve Yasam Hakki

and also in

La Globalizzazione post COVID-19 - breve analisi delle possibili caratteristiche della prossima ondata di globalizzazione (Post COVID-19 Globalization - A Brief Analysis of Possible Characteristics of the Next Wave of Globalization), by Chiara Ricchietti, Trieste, Italy, June 2020.

Coronavirus and UN Reform, article in *How do we lead in an uncertain world?* in the special edition of Global Policy Analysis, the flagship journal of the Nizami Ganjavi International Center, Baku, April 2020.

https://nizamiganjavi-

ic.org/uploads/journal/6/f11aab24fdd4f1fde830648a95464eb8.pdf?v=1657974157

Also published privately here:

https://www.academia.edu/42550013/Coronavirus and UN Reform

Как сделать 5 апреля — Международный день осознанности — по-настоящему осмысленным (How to Make April 5th — International Day of Mindfulness — Truly Meaningful), published online by the School of Civic Education, 5 April 2020. <a href="https://sapere.online/kak-sdelat-5-aprelya-mezhdunarodnyi-den-osoznannosti-po-nastoyashemu-osmyslennym/">https://sapere.online/kak-sdelat-5-aprelya-mezhdunarodnyi-den-osoznannosti-po-nastoyashemu-osmyslennym/</a>

Early radical action required to fight Coronavirus COVID-19, Academia.edu, March 2020. <a href="https://www.academia.edu/42187582/Early\_radical\_action\_required\_to\_fight\_Coronavirus\_COVID\_19">https://www.academia.edu/42187582/Early\_radical\_action\_required\_to\_fight\_Coronavirus\_COVID\_19</a>

The Church and the United Nations in 2020 – Reflections. Revised ex-2015, Academia.edu. https://www.academia.edu/43295703/The Church and the United Nations in 2020 Reflections

**Parturition beyond Partition** – an essay on geopolitical consequences and possibilities of Brexit for Ireland, the EU, and beyond, presented to the 34th Annual Plenary Meeting of the InterAction Council of former Presidents/Prime Ministers, published 2 April 2017. <a href="https://www.academia.edu/39128650/Parturition">https://www.academia.edu/39128650/Parturition</a> beyond Partition

The Crisis in Gaza (about the conflict between Hamas and Israel), published in letter format in the Irish Times newspaper and online, Dublin, 2 August 2014. https://www.irishtimes.com/debate/letters/the-crisis-in-gaza-1.1885215?page=1

**Ukraine:** An opportunity for greatness published in KyivPost, Kyiv, Ukraine, 21 April 2011. https://www.kyivpost.com/article/opinion/op-ed/an-opportunity-for-greatness-102695.html

Seanad Éireann (NUI constituency), candidate election campaign flyer, Dublin, 2011 https://irishelectionliterature.com/2011/03/25/flyer-for-francis-martin-odonnell-nui-seanad-2011/

**КАКО** ДА СРБИА И ЦРНА ГОРА КРЕНУ ПУТЕМ НАПРЕТКА - Чека нас трње, а не руже, - How Can Serbia And Montenegro Start On The Path Of Progress - We are waiting for thorns, not roses (article by O'Donnell sharply critical of backsliding on reforms; EU integration would be a panacea, not cure), Politika, Belgrade, Tuesday, 13 January 2004.

**The Baghdad Tragedy – Our finest colleagues remembered** (eulogy for the victims of the Baghdad Bombing of 19 August 2003), UN Office of the Resident Coordinator, Belgrade, 26 August 2003.

**Taking the Gun out of Politics** – article on ceremonial destruction of 4,000 small arms and light weapons, including AK-47s, RPGs, etc. that produced an estimated 12 tons of high-grade steel at the smelter of Smeredevo, UNDP, Belgrade, 12 April 2003.

**Serbian Prime Minister Djindjic Assassinated** (details & outlook), UNDP Belgrade, 12 March 2003

Ljudima je stalo do Života i zaravija dece - Zna li se dovoljno da je politika javni servis - People care about life and the welfare of children - it is well known that politics is a public service, Danas, Belgrade, 13 January 2003.

Strategic Opportunities for Global Reforms – and for the UN, UNDP, & international relations (following the 9/11 tragedy), New York, 15 September 2001.

**Terror in America**, by Frank O'Donnell on 12 September 2001, being an eyewitness account amongst other Irish in New York in a blog of that title on the occasion of what became known as "9/11", under link <a href="https://www.ireland.com/special/usattack/eyewitness/personalstories.htm">https://www.ireland.com/special/usattack/eyewitness/personalstories.htm</a> [website later taken over by Tourism Ireland; but hardcopy printed on 14 Sept. 2001, now in his archive]

## ARTICLES PUBLISHED IN OTHER HISTORICAL OR SCHOLARLY JOURNALS

**Tyrconnell's Clans Revived**, published in the Journal of the Genealogical Society of Ireland, Volume 25, 2024 [ISSN 2712-0228], and also on Academia.edu: https://www.academia.edu/126191434/Tyrconnells Clans Revived

**Tone's Death**, letter in *History Ireland* volume 32 no. 6 of November/December 2024, commenting on the article by Paddy Cullivan "*The death of Theobald Wolfe Tone-suicide or murder?*" (*History Ireland*, Vol. 32 n. 5, Sept./Oct. 2024), and referring to prior research "*Wolfe Tone's death: suicide or assassination?*", that appeared in the Irish Journal of Medical Science, Vol. 166, No. 1 (ISSN 0021-1265), for January-March 1997, written by Comdt Patrick D. O'Donnell. <a href="https://historyireland.com/tones-death/">https://historyireland.com/tones-death/</a>

The Flight of the Girls (Lady Mary O'Donnell and her Stuart quandaries), Journal of the Genealogical Society of Ireland, Volume 24, 2023 [ISSN 2712-0228], and also on Academia.edu: https://www.academia.edu/126195488/The Flight of the Girls

**The O'Donnell Clan Revival,** published in the Journal of the Genealogical Society of Ireland, Volume 22, October 2021 [ISSN 2712-0228], and reproduced on Academia.edu. https://www.academia.edu/61340457/The ODonnell Clan Revival

The O'Donnells of Tyrconnell - A Hidden Legacy *A note on the research behind my book*, published in the Journal of the Genealogical Society of Ireland, Volume 21, 2020 [ISSN 2712-0228]. <a href="https://familyhistory.ie/newtheme/publications/journals/">https://familyhistory.ie/newtheme/publications/journals/</a>

A Global Society for Irish Nobility and Armigerous Families – a Concept Paper, chapter in *Actas – Il Coloquio Internacional Sobre La Nobleza* (2<sup>nd</sup> International Colloquium on Nobility Oct. 2017) Real Asociación de Hidalgos de España, Madrid 2019 (ISBN: 978-84-948410-5-7). <a href="https://www.edicioneshidalguia.es/?product=ii-coloquio-internacional-sobre-la-nobleza-actas">https://www.academia.edu/41868274/IRISH NOBILITY AND ARMIGEROUS FAMILIES</a>

The Kerry Days of the Knights of Hospitaller, published in the Journal of the Kerry Archaeological and Historical Society, Series 2, Volume 15, Tralee, Winter, 2015. <a href="https://www.academia.edu/19200094/The Kerry Days of the Knights Hospitaller">https://www.academia.edu/19200094/The Kerry Days of the Knights Hospitaller</a> and also in <a href="http://traleedingle.ardfert.anglican.org/historyStJohnTralee.html">http://traleedingle.ardfert.anglican.org/historyStJohnTralee.html</a>

The Chevalier Michel O'Donnell (1730-1807) – a Wild Goose from Mullet, published in The Irish Sword, vol. XXX, no. 119, journal of the Military History Society of Ireland, Summer 2015 (pp 71-78). <a href="https://www.academia.edu/19200320/The\_Chevalier\_Michel\_ODonnell\_1730-1807">https://www.academia.edu/19200320/The\_Chevalier\_Michel\_ODonnell\_1730-1807</a> - A Wild Goose from Mullet

**Global stability through multilateralism and why a strong UN is important for the protection of freedom and prosperity**, article in *Ukraine Diplomatic*, Annual Scientific Publication, 5<sup>th</sup> edition, prepared by Leonid Guberckiy, Pavlo Hryvonos, Mykola Kulinich, and Anatoliy Denysenko, published in Kyiv, Ukraine, 2005 (ISBN 966-7522-07-5).

**Wealth of Dignity, Poverty of Destiny** – the tragic story of Princess Mary Stuart O'Donnell in medieval Europe, published in Ó Domhnaill Abú, Newsletter no. 32, by the Clan Association of the O'Donnells of Tyrconnell, Donegal, Ireland, Summer 2004 (ISSN 0790 7389].

#### OTHER PERSONAL PUBLICATIONS

Gennady E. BURBULIS (1945-2022) – Last Words to the World, from former 1st Deputy Prime Minister and the Russian signatory of the Belavezha Accords that dissolved the USSR. The author was honoured to know him; Burbulis died in Baku in 2022. Academia.edu, June 2024. <a href="https://www.academia.edu/82206334/Gennady">https://www.academia.edu/82206334/Gennady</a> E Burbulis 1945 2022 Last Words to the World

Waiting for Godot or just going nowhere? The UN at 78 years, article marking UN Day published on Academia.edu, Dublin, 24 October 2023.

https://www.academia.edu/108821855/Waiting for Godot or just going nowhere The UN at 78 years

Hearkening back to Inspirations for Global Harmony, reflections on the International Day of Friendship, including musical links related, published on Academia.edu, 31 July 2022. <a href="https://www.academia.edu/84019066/Hearkening">https://www.academia.edu/84019066/Hearkening</a> back to Inspirations for Global Harmony

**Resonances of Art and Poetry** – **Shusha**, reflections following a visit to Nagorno-Karabakh, and its mixed Armenenian-Azeri culture. Princess Khurshidbanu Natavan (1832-1897) entertained Alexandre Dumas (1802-1870) in Baku. Dumas was a close friend of the French O'Donnell Counts, of the Princes of Tyrconnell, published on Academia.edu, Vienna, June 2022. <a href="https://www.academia.edu/82224758/Resonances">https://www.academia.edu/82224758/Resonances</a> of Art and Poetry Shusha

Whose World? Multilateralism and Challenges to the Global Order, article on the global consequences of Russia's unprovoked invasion of Ukraine, Academia.edu, May 2022. <a href="https://www.academia.edu/79997518/Whose World Multilateralism and Challenges to the Global Order">https://www.academia.edu/79997518/Whose World Multilateralism and Challenges to the Global Order</a>

Beyond the Armada - A reflection on the Ragusans of Dalmatia and the Spanish Armada: shipwrecked, murdered, or lost in Ireland. An essay on the struggle of exiles and emigrés in the cause of legitimization, preservation and advancement of their identity. Published on Academia.edu, online 19 October 2021

https://www.academia.edu/59016654/Beyond the Armada

**Brexit Endgame - the UK's Identity Crisis** (A reflection re-visited), published on Academia.edu on 2 December 2020.

https://www.academia.edu/37797749/Brexit\_Endgame\_the\_UK\_s\_Identity\_Crisis\_A\_reflection\_re\_visited\_

Memorialising Emigré Dignity - The Cultural Heritage of St. Anthony's College, Leuven, background paper for the first webinar of the Irish College Leuven held online (due to pandemic) in October 2020.

https://www.academia.edu/44246051/Memorialising Emigr%C3%A9 Dignity The Cultural Heritage of St Anthonys College Leuven

What did they really look like? An Iconography of the O'Donnells of Tyrconnell: myth, allegory, prejudice & evidence, published on Academia.edu, Dublin, August 2020. <a href="https://www.academia.edu/43816384/What did they really look like An Iconography of the ODonnells of Tyrconnell myth allegory prejudice and evidence">https://www.academia.edu/43816384/What did they really look like An Iconography of the ODonnells of Tyrconnell myth allegory prejudice and evidence</a>

**The O'Donnell Dynasty and Donegal Abbey**, Academia.edu, Dublin, 14 June 2020 https://www.academia.edu/43323694/The ODonnell Dynasty and Donegal Abbey

We should avoid being 'holier than Pope' about Red Hugh, letter about dynastic intrigues and conflicting narratives surrounding the record of Red Hugh O'Donnell, Irish Independent, Dublin, 4 June 2020. <a href="https://www.independent.ie/opinion/letters/we-should-avoid-being-holier-than-pope-about-red-hugh/39258949.html">https://www.independent.ie/opinion/letters/we-should-avoid-being-holier-than-pope-about-red-hugh/39258949.html</a>

Donegal Abbey as a mausoleum for the remains of Red Hugh O'Donnell Sovereign of Tír Chonaill, published personally on Academia.edu, Dublin, 2 June 2020 <a href="https://www.academia.edu/43237024/Donegal">https://www.academia.edu/43237024/Donegal</a> Abbey as a mausoleum for the return of the remains of Red Hugh ODonnell Sovereign of Tyrconnelll

The Burial Place of Red Hugh O'Donnell in the Convent of Saint Francis in Valladolid, published personally on Academia.edu, Dublin, 31 May 2020. <a href="https://www.academia.edu/43215638/The Burial Place of Red Hugh ODonnell In the Convent of Saint Francis">https://www.academia.edu/43215638/The Burial Place of Red Hugh ODonnell In the Convent of Saint Francis in Valladolid</a>

**Advisory Brief on Exhumation of Prince Red Hugh O'Donnell**, published personally on Academia.edu, Dublin, 30 May 2020.

https://www.academia.edu/43149239/Advisory\_Brief\_on\_Exhumation\_of\_Prince\_Red\_Hugh\_ODonnell

Red Hugh O'Donnell - Further background on the search for recovery of his mortal remains, published personally on Academia.edu, Dublin, 30 May 2020. <a href="https://www.academia.edu/43207232/Red\_Hugh\_ODonnell\_Further\_background\_on\_the\_search\_for\_his\_remains">https://www.academia.edu/43207232/Red\_Hugh\_ODonnell\_Further\_background\_on\_the\_search\_for\_his\_remains</a>

The Very Rev. Fr. Thomas O'Donnell, C.M. (1864-1949), President of All Hallows College – A Biographical Sketch, published personally on Academic.edu, April 2020. https://www.academia.edu/43082310/Fr Thomas ODonnell C M A Biography

**Bullock Castle and Monaco**, the Fagans of Feltrim, ancestors of Princess Charlene of Monaco, published on Academia.edu, Dalkey, April 2020 <a href="https://www.academia.edu/42883007/Bullock Castle">https://www.academia.edu/42883007/Bullock Castle</a> and Monaco

## The Cholera Pandemic of the 1830s, the Code Vicinal and modernization in France,

an extract from the book "The O'Donnells of Tyrconnell – A Hidden Legacy", where the author describes how the experience of Count Jean Louis Barthélemy O'Donnell, led to his being charged with coordination of the Cholera epidemic of 1832 in Paris, which led to his work on the "Code Vicinal" transforming it into a blueprint for socially-balanced economic development during the Industrial Revolution in 19th C France.

https://www.academia.edu/43085909/The Cholera Pandemic of the 1830s the Code Vicinal and modernization in France

The trials and tribulations of an Irish princess in exile, published online in December 2018. (An extract from the author's book *The O'Donnells of Tyrconnell – A Hidden Legacy*, published by Academica Press LLC, London and Washington DC, 2018/2019). https://www.academia.edu/38268198/An Irish Princess in Exile

The Ghost of Ballyheigue Castle, published online in December 2018. (An extract from the author's book *The O'Donnells of Tyrconnell – A Hidden Legacy*, 2018/2019). https://www.academia.edu/39767773/The Ghost of Ballyheigue Castle

Sir Desmond Lorenz de Silva, QC (1939-2018) – *A posthumous appreciation*, an obituary note published online in academia.edu and Facebook on 13 June 2018.

https://www.academia.edu/36835876/Sir\_Desmond\_Lorenz\_de\_Silva\_QC\_1939\_2018\_A\_posth\_umous\_appreciation

**26** April – The Feast of Domhnall – *Speculations on his identity*, a hagiographical query published on Academia.edu 17 April 2018.

https://www.academia.edu/36499070/26 April The Feast Day of Domhnall and in April 2024: https://www.academia.edu/118108516/St Donals Day 26 April

The trials and tribulations of an Irish Princess in Exile, the story of Lady Mary "Stuart" O'Donnell, an extract from the author's book "The O'Donnells of Tyrconnell – A Hidden Legacy", published by Academica Press LLC, London and Washington DC, 2018. https://www.academia.edu/38268198/An Irish Princess in Exile

The Pseudo-Chisholmian Hyponeustic against Polyester in Pelagics, a whimsical essay published on Academia.edu 17 April 2018.

https://www.academia.edu/36438827/The Pseudo Chisholmian Hyponeustic against Polyester in Pelagics

**Princes of the O'Donnells - Some Portraits of the Baronets O'Donnell of Newport**, who were made Baronets (extinct) in the endowment of the National Gallery of Ireland; published on Academia.edu on 27 September 2017.

https://www.academia.edu/34687554/ Princes of the ODonnells Some Portraits of the Baron ets ODonnell of Newport

**St. Columba/ColmCille (521-597 AD)** – an essay this native Patron Saint of Ireland, published on Academia.edu on 24 May 2017.

https://www.academia.edu/33172009/St. Columba 521-597 A.D.

A personal reflection on St. Patrick's Day & the meaning of life, published on Academia.edu 17 March 2016.

https://www.academia.edu/23341295/A\_personal\_reflection\_on\_St.\_Patricks\_Day\_and\_the\_mea\_ning\_of\_life

The Church and the United Nations – some personal reflections, Academia.edu, 2015. <a href="https://www.academia.edu/15907782/The\_Church\_and\_the\_United\_Nations\_some\_personal\_reflections">https://www.academia.edu/15907782/The\_Church\_and\_the\_United\_Nations\_some\_personal\_reflections</a>

Martyrs for a European ideal: how the refugee crisis is transforming European values and outlook – published online, 10 September 2015.

https://www.academia.edu/15579147/Martyrs for Europe

From Nazareth to Where - a Fourth Generation Exodus from the Holy Land, published personally on Facebook on 27 July 2015:

https://www.facebook.com/notes/821358471997309/ and on Academia.edu:

https://www.academia.edu/126134842/From Nazareth to where

and as

**Došli smo iz Nazareta, kuda ćemo sad?** (We came from Nazareth, where are we going now?), published in the daily Danas (in Serbian), Belgrade, 27 July 2015. https://www.danas.rs/vesti/drustvo/dosli-smo-iz-nazareta-kuda-cemo-sad/

**Restitution of a constitutional monarchy as valid and legitimate option?** published in *Nobilitas* (www.nobilitas.eu), 21 July 2015.

A Green Faith Initiative, published on Facebook, 21 July 2015.

Greece: Letter to the Taoiseach/Irish Prime Minister, published on Facebook, 16 July 2015.

**Dobriansky, the non-Russian centrifuge, and a union of "diversity and minorities",** published on Academia.edu, 17 June 2015.

https://www.academia.edu/13049866/Dobriansky\_the\_non\_Russian\_centrifuge\_and\_a\_union\_of\_diversity\_and\_minorities\_

Masada never again, neither Israeli nor Palestinian, Irish Times, Saturday 2 August 2014.

**Smoke and Mirrors at play in Ukraine**, published in letter form, on its page 10 in the Financial Times, London, 17 April 2015. <a href="https://www.facebook.com/notes/2849386318625588/">https://www.facebook.com/notes/2849386318625588/</a>

Scotland's Challenge – an Irish Diaspora view, published on Facebook, 17 September 2014.

Ukraine needs radical reform NOW: a strategic priority for the EU, published on Facebook, Vienna, 18 February 2014.

Eurozone & Merkelisation: angels or demons: enter the Euromark? Crunch-time for Europe: risks and opportunities, published on Facebook and on own website, Vienna, 30 November 2011. https://www.facebook.com/notes/355626332185129/

Saving the economy, livelihoods, and education - New financial instruments, the Diaspora, and optimism, published on own website, March-April 2011.

**Reversing pessimism is essential to restore confidence,** published on own website, March-April 2011.

**Bail-out, or balancing rights and budgets**?, published on own website, March-April 2011; An earlier version of this article was originally posted on the internet on Friday, 10 December 2010

Nuclear energy: NOT in Ireland, please! published on own website, March-April 2011

**Personal reflections on characteristics of good leadership**, Facebook Thursday, April 21, 2011 https://www.facebook.com/notes/356492558797735/

**Corruption and State capture - Solutions lie with the younger generation**Published by Francis Martin O'Donnell on Facebook on Thursday, April 21, 2011

#### The challenge of emigration

Published by Francis Martin O'Donnell on Facebook on Thursday, April 21, 2011

## Ted Sorensen and the Craft of the Speechwriter

Published by Francis Martin O'Donnell on Facebook on Thursday, April 21, 2011

Lessons from Eastern Europe: Macroeconomic stabilization in economies in transition Published by Francis Martin O'Donnell on Facebook on Wednesday, April 20, 2011

Averting state capture: reform must put the people at the center of politics Published by Francis Martin O'Donnell on Facebook on Tuesday, April 19, 2011

O'Donnell lambasts corruption; advocates rights-based reforms on RTE Radio 1 Talk Show (Pat Kenny Show); Published by Francis M. O'Donnell on Facebook on Thursday, March 31, 2011, based on Radio Show "Today with Pat Kenny", RTÉ Radio 1, live from Buswells Hotel, Dublin, 31 March 2011.

O'Donnell explains: OK, nuclear energy for Ireland: Yes, but...

by Francis Martin O'Donnell on Facebook, Wednesday, March 30, 2011

Leadership Challenges in the Service of Society, lecture delivered abridged orally Saturday, 29 November 2008 at the *Youth Meeting in Rome*, held at the premises of the European University of Rome, 28-30 November 2008, to a conference of youth commemorating the start of the Pontificate of the late Holy Father, Pope John-Paul II. Following the conclusion of the meeting, the participants assembled in St. Peter's Square and were addressed directly and mentioned by His Holiness Pope Benedict XVI during a general audience at the Angelus on 30 November 2008. <a href="https://www.academia.edu/32240169/Leadership challenges in the service of society Address to Youth 2008">https://www.academia.edu/32240169/Leadership challenges in the service of society Address to Youth 2008</a> and <a href="https://www.youthmeetingrome.com/?cont=speak\_donnell.html">https://www.youthmeetingrome.com/?cont=speak\_donnell.html</a>

**Counting on Ukrainian Agriculture** – UN appeals to breadbasket Ukraine to help alleviate growing threat of global food crisis, article published in Business Ukraine weekly, Kyiv, Ukraine, 6-12 October 2008.

**The Family in the 21**<sup>st</sup> **Century**, chapter based on article statement made by Francis M. O'Donnell, at the *XXII International Congress on the Family*, and published in **Family** – **a community of love**, with forewords by Ukraine's President Viktor Yushchenko, First Lady, Kateryna Yushchenko, Lyubomyr Cardinal Huzar, and Angelo Cardinal Sodano, Secretary of State of the Holy See; published by the Family – Community of Love Foundation, 2007, edited by Elzbieta Drucka Lubecka de Sejournet, Jolanta Bisping Mycielska, Liliya Protsiv, and Maria Kozhukh.

International Assistance – should be continued, article in *In the Legal Field* section of Kurier newspaper, Kiev Ukraine, 27 April 2007.

**Transforming the State-Citizen relationship in Ukraine**, statement delivered by Francis O'Donnell, at Wilton Park Conference, England, UK, on 2 February 2005.

**Reform and Perform! Food for thought and a recipe for action**, article by Francis M. O'Donnell on Ukrainian reforms, published in Kyiv, Ukraine.

**Blue Ribbon Commission 2** – *launched new report*, brief article appearing in **Heading towards Peace** – *Compilation of articles and documents*, edited and compiled by Anatoliy Rakhanski, published by Intertekhdruk, with the support of the Ministry of Foreign Affairs, (ISBN 996 8026-62-4), in Kyiv, Ukraine.

**The Special Case of the Western Balkans**, monograph distributed in Irish Government/EU Presidency, EU Parliament President, and UN circles in December 2003.

**Politics is Public Service**, article which appeared in Serbian [with title "**People care about lives and health of children**"] on page 9 of the Belgrade daily newspaper "Danas" on 15 January 2003

**Time to be realistic – troubles loom ahead, not trumpets**, article which appeared in Serbian [with title "**Thorns ahead, not roses**"] on editorial page A6 of Belgrade daily newspaper "Politika" on 13 January 2003.

# GLOBAL APPEALS/DECLARATIONS CO-DRAFTED/CO-SIGNED

**UN Charter at 80:** A Call to Reclaim its Purpose, co-drafter among the *Peace Reflection Group*, and signatory, along with 330 former UN officials, including former Secretary-General Ban KiMoon, and 16 former presidents and 20 former prime ministers and others from 34 countries from all continents, under auspices of the Foundation for Global Governance and. Sustainability, Brussels, 24 June 2025. <a href="https://www.foggs.org/prg/call-un-charter-at-80/">https://www.foggs.org/prg/call-un-charter-at-80/</a> [as of 26 June 2025, co-signed by 16 former Presidents and 20 former Prime Ministers from 34 countries across all continents].

Letter on Israel-Palestine to Presidents of the UN General Assembly and UN Security Council; (co-signatory) by former senior UN officials, 22 November 2024 and sent in view of the UN observance of the International Day of Solidarity with the Palestinian People on 29 November. Facilitated by the Foundation for Global Governance & Sustainability, Brussels, 2024. <a href="https://www.foggs.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/11/Letter-to-PGA-on-Middle-East\_from-former-UN-staff\_with-signatures-22Nov2024\_Final.pdf">https://www.foggs.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/11/Letter-to-UNSC-President-on-Middle-East\_from-former-UN-staff\_with-signatures-22Nov2024\_Final.pdf</a>

Call to End the violence in the Middle East Now and for Good; (co-signatory), signed by former senior UN officials, facilitated by the Foundation for Global Governance & Sustainability, Brussels, 24 October, 2024. <a href="https://www.foggs.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/10/Call-to-end-ME-violence-Final-with-signatures-23-24-Oct-2024.pdf">https://www.foggs.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/10/Call-to-end-ME-violence-Final-with-signatures-23-24-Oct-2024.pdf</a>

Open letter to UN principal organs for immediate action regarding the situation in Gaza (co-signatory); addressed to senior officials of the United Nations and requesting "immediate and decisive action to address the crisis in Gaza" issued by the Peacemaking Reflection Group (PRG) of former UN system staff, facilitated by the Foundation for Global Governance & Sustainability, Brussels, 2024. <a href="https://www.foggs.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/06/Gaza-open-letter-by-PRG-3-June-2024\_wSignatories.pdf">https://www.foggs.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/06/Gaza-open-letter-by-PRG-3-June-2024\_wSignatories.pdf</a>

Open letter to UN Secretary-General calls for merit-based appointment of Emergency Relief Coordinator; (co-signatory); from a number of senior former UN officials and civil society leaders to the Secretary-General on the subject of the appointment of the next head of the Office for the Coordination of Humanitarian Affairs and Emergency Relief Coordinator. This initiative was coordinated by the United Nations Association – UK (UNA-UK) and the Foundation for Global Governance and Sustainability. <a href="https://www.foggs.org/8384/open-letter-to-un-secretary-general-calls-for-merit-based-appointment-of-emergency-relief-coordinator/">https://www.foggs.org/8384/open-letter-to-un-secretary-general-calls-for-merit-based-appointment-of-emergency-relief-coordinator/</a>

Call For UN Security Council Resolution 2720 Immediate Follow-Up; demanding rapid, safe, and unhindered humanitarian access in Gaza, along with the immediate and unconditional release of all hostages (co-signatory). Issued by the Peacemaking Reflection Group (PRG) of former UN system staff, with other civil society members, facilitated by the Foundation for Global Governance & Sustainability, Brussels, 27 December 2023. <a href="https://www.foggs.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/10/Call-to-World-Leaders-on-Gaza-Final-27-Dec-2023-with-Signatories.pdf">https://www.foggs.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/10/Call-to-World-Leaders-on-Gaza-Final-27-Dec-2023-with-Signatories.pdf</a>

**Submission for UN Pact for the Future** (contributor). In response to a call to civil society stakeholders by the Co-facilitators of the UN Summit of the Future (SOTF) negotiation process, the Foundation for Global Governance and Sustainability provided a written submission to the SOTF outcome "Pact for the Future", based on discussions and publications produced in conjunction with the Peacemaking Reflection Group of former UN system staff (PRG) facilitated by FOGGS, Brussels, 2023. <a href="https://www.un.org/sites/un2.un.org/files/sof-foundation-foggs-input-zero-draft-pact-for-future.pdf">https://www.un.org/sites/un2.un.org/files/sof-foundation-foggs-input-zero-draft-pact-for-future.pdf</a>

**Declaration in support of UN Secretary-General António Guterres,** (co-signatory), issued by the Peacemaking Reflection Group (PRG) of former UN system staff, with other civil society members, facilitated by the Foundation for Global Governance & Sustainability, Brussels, 26 October 2023. <a href="https://www.foggs.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/10/PRG-Statement-in-support-of-UNSG-with-Signatories.pdf">https://www.foggs.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/10/PRG-Statement-in-support-of-UNSG-with-Signatories.pdf</a>

**Statement On The Situation In Israel-Palestine** (participant) by the Peacemaking Reflection Group (PRG), of former UN system staff, with other civil society members, facilitated by the Foundation for Global Governance & Sustainability, Brussels, 21 October 2023. <a href="https://www.foggs.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/PRG-Statement-on-Israel-Gaza 21Oct2023 Final.pdf">https://www.foggs.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/PRG-Statement-on-Israel-Gaza 21Oct2023 Final.pdf</a>

Appeal to the United Nations Secretary-General and the Security Council to urgently prevent nuclear disaster at the Zaporizhzhia Nuclear Power Plant (co-signatory), issued by the Peacemaking Reflection Group (PRG) of former UN system staff, with other civil society members, facilitated by the Foundation for Global Governance & Sustainability, Brussels, July 2023. <a href="https://www.foggs.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/07/PRG-Appeal-to-prevent-nuclear-disaster-at-Zaporizhzhia-NPP-3-July-2023-Final-with-signatories.pdf">https://www.foggs.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/07/PRG-Appeal-to-prevent-nuclear-disaster-at-Zaporizhzhia-NPP-3-July-2023-Final-with-signatories.pdf</a>

Letter to António Guterres Secretary-General of the United Nations, urging further actions to end the war against Ukraine, including establishing a Mixed Armistice Commission of both Russia and Ukraine and chaired by a Special Representative, and Commission of Experts, and a Group of Eminent Women signed by of former UN system staff, facilitated by the Foundation for Global Governance & Sustainability, Brussels, 26 April 2023. <a href="https://www.foggs.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/Letter-to-UNSG-on-Ukraine-with-signatures-of-former-UN-staff-with-Addendum-April2023.pdf">https://www.foggs.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/Letter-to-UNSG-on-Ukraine-with-signatures-of-former-UN-staff-with-Addendum-April2023.pdf</a> (co-signatory and original drafter),

Contribution To The UN Secretary-General's New Agenda For Peace. (co-author). Joint submission by nine members of the Peacemaking Reflection Group (PRG) with other civil society members, facilitated by the Foundation for Global Governance & Sustainability, Brussels, 15 January 2023. <a href="https://www.foggs.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/PRG-contribution-to-UNSG-New-Agenda-for-Peace-Final15Jan2023.pdf">https://www.foggs.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/PRG-contribution-to-UNSG-New-Agenda-for-Peace-Final15Jan2023.pdf</a>

Armistice Call (11 November 2022), initiated by the Peacemaking Reflection Group in collaboration with the InterAction Council, facilitated by the Foundation for Global Governance & Sustainability and Change.Org. https://www.foggs.org/armistice-call-11-nov-2022/

Letter to the G-20 Summit participants by former UN system staff (Nov 2022) on Russia's invasion of Ukraine and world peace. (initiator/co-drafter and co-signatory), published by the Foundation for Global Governance and Sustainability, Brussels, 16 November 2022. <a href="https://www.foggs.org/letter-to-the-g-20-summit-participants-by-former-un-system-staff-nov-2022/">https://www.foggs.org/letter-to-the-g-20-summit-participants-by-former-un-system-staff-nov-2022/</a>

Joint Letter to the UN Secretary-General, urging him to advance a more political UN presence and public engagement, in addition to the UN's notable humanitarian response, and to take a more pro-active stance on the war against Ukraine, engage in shuttle diplomacy, and possibly relocate to Europe. (He received the letter on 18 April 2022, and announced on 19 April hist intended visits to Moscow and Kyiv); co-drafter/co-signatory; facilitated by the Foundation for Global Governance & Sustainability, Brussels & New York, 15 April 2022. <a href="https://www.foggs.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/Letter-to-UNSG-on-Ukraine-with-signatures-of-former-UN-staff-with-Addendum-April2022.pdf">https://www.foggs.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/Letter-to-UNSG-on-Ukraine-with-signatures-of-former-UN-staff-with-Addendum-April2022.pdf</a>

Call from Members of the Nizami Ganjavi International Centre to the United Nations Security Council to Support the UN Secretary-General's Urgent Call for an Immediate Global Ceasefire amid the COVID-19 Pandemic (co-signed), published by the Nizami Ganjavi International Centre, Baku, 2022 https://nizamiganjavi-ic.org/en/statement/7

Appeal by World Leaders: The Will and Courage to Stand Up to a Modern-Day Threat to World Peace, co-signatory to grave concern about the rapidly growing threat of large-scale armed conflict that is threatening Ukraine's sovereignty, political independence, unity, and territorial integrity, NGIC and Boston Global Forum, 22 February 2022. <a href="https://bostonglobalforum.org/news/the-will-and-courage-to-stand-up-to-a-modern-day-threat-to-world-peace/">https://bostonglobalforum.org/news/the-will-and-courage-to-stand-up-to-a-modern-day-threat-to-world-peace/</a>

Declaration: Recognizing the global climate crisis and the need for governments worldwide to take immediate decisive action to reduce the impact of climate change - A call towards the COP26 global summit in Glasgow, co-signed with over 50 members of the Nizami Ganjavi International Center including 30 former president and Prime Ministers, published by the Nizami Ganjavi International Center, Baku, October 2021. https://en.trend.az/azerbaijan/3502505.html

Appeal of Members to the United Nations Security Council to Support the *UN Secretary-General's Urgent Call for an Immediate Global Ceasefire amid the COVID-19 Pandemic*, published by the Nizami Ganjavi International Center, Baku, May 2020. <a href="https://www.nizamiganjavi-ic.org/en/statement/7">https://www.nizamiganjavi-ic.org/en/statement/7</a>

**Declaration of Principles for Freedom, Prosperity, and Peace** (Atlantic Charter 2.0); co-signed; sponsored by the Atlantic Council and the Centre for International Governance Innovation, released at the Munich Security Conference February 2019; published by the Atlantic Council, New York, 2019; <a href="https://www.atlanticcouncil.org/declaration/">https://www.atlanticcouncil.org/declaration/</a>

https://www.cfr.org/blog/atlantic-charter-20-declaration-principles-freedom-prosperity-and-peace

(above excludes other appeals signed on AVAAZ and CHANGE.ORG)

#### PERSONAL CONTRIBUTIONS TO AND/OR CITATIONS IN OTHER PUBLICATIONS

**Sources and Solutions for Global Turbulence** by Garry Jacobs and Ketan Patel, in *Cadmus Journal*, Volume 5, Issue 4, published by the World Academy of Art and Science, 10 July 2025. <a href="https://www.cadmusjournal.org/article/volume-5-issue-4/sources-and-solutions-global-turbulence">https://www.cadmusjournal.org/article/volume-5-issue-4/sources-and-solutions-global-turbulence</a>

**The Post-Pandemic World Between War And Peace**, in the series *Recent History And Future Anticipation*, with reference to a panel "*Globalization and the Rise of Inequalities*" moderated by O'Donnell (pp. 322, 327) at the Global Baku Forum in June 2022; by fmr President Emil Constantinescu of Romania and Oana-Elena Brânda, published by the Institute for Advanced Studies in Levant Culture and Civilization, Bucharest, 2024.

https://institutlevant.ro/wp-content/uploads/2024/04/institute\_levant\_post-pandemic\_world\_between\_war\_peace\_emil\_constantinescu\_oana-elena\_branda\_debates\_vol\_1.pdf

International Initiatives aimed at Countering the Effects of the War in Ukraine and ensuring Post-Conflict Reconstruction (Chapter IV of the above), *International Appeals: Solidarity And Justice*, with reference to O'Donnell's initiative (for the members of the Nizami Ganjavi International Center) for a world leaders' Call for the *robust implementation of UN General Assembly Resolution ESS-11/1 viz Ukraine*; published by The Institute for Advanced Studies in Levant Culture and Civilization (Centre of Excellence of the World Academy of Art & Science), Bucharest, 2024. (pp. 342-346).

https://institutlevant.ro/wp-content/uploads/2024/04/institute\_levant\_post-pandemic\_world\_between\_war\_peace\_emil\_constantinescu\_oanaelena\_branda\_debates\_vol\_1\_04.pdf

**Heraldry Ireland – The Arms of the Presidents of the Genealogical Society of Ireland** (and as also as registered with *The Armorial Register - International Register of Armorial Bearings*), published by the Genealogical Society of Ireland, Dublin, 7 March 2024. <a href="https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=0YYxPul3ZXg">https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=0YYxPul3ZXg</a>

Justice pour les enfants d'Afrique (appeal for Children of Africa), co-signatory, issued by Laureates and Leaders for Children Worldwide, c/o Kailash Satyarthi Children's Foundation, Washington DC, 2023. https://www.laureatesandleaders.org/statement-french

10th Global Baku Forum discussions on search for peace, stability and development in the Middle East and beyond, panel moderated by O'Donnell, Azertac, Baku, 11 March 2023. <a href="https://azertag.az/en/xeber/10th\_Global\_Baku\_Forum\_features\_discussions\_on\_search\_for\_peacestability\_and\_development\_in\_the\_Middle\_East\_and\_beyond-2528159">https://azertag.az/en/xeber/10th\_Global\_Baku\_Forum\_features\_discussions\_on\_search\_for\_peacestability\_and\_development\_in\_the\_Middle\_East\_and\_beyond-2528159</a>

Contribution to the UN Secretary-General's New Agenda for Peace, co-author with others, published by the Foundation for Global Governance & Sustainability, Brussels, 15 January 2023. <a href="https://www.foggs.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/PRG-contribution-to-UNSG-New-Agenda-for-Peace-Final15Jan2023.pdf">https://www.foggs.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/PRG-contribution-to-UNSG-New-Agenda-for-Peace-Final15Jan2023.pdf</a>

also here: presented to the 37th Annual Plenary Meeting of the InterAction Council of former Presidents and Prime Ministers at its 37<sup>th</sup> Plenary Meeting in Malta, 15-17 May 2023, by the Peacemaking Reflection Group (PRG) Former UN System Staff for Peace in Ukraine, Valettta, 17 May 2023. <a href="https://www.interactioncouncil.org/publications/contribution-un-secretary-generals-new-agenda-peace">https://www.interactioncouncil.org/publications/contribution-un-secretary-generals-new-agenda-peace</a> and here:

https://www.academia.edu/100535494/Contribution\_to\_the\_UN\_Secretary\_Generals\_New\_Agenda\_for\_Peace

Special Event in Kaunas: Lithuanian and Foreign Leaders and Intellectuals to Discuss the Future of Europe, Report from Kaunas, Lithuania, published by The Baltic Times, Riga, 10 November 2022.

https://www.baltictimes.com/special\_event\_in\_kaunas\_\_lithuanian\_and\_foreign\_leaders\_and\_intell ectuals to discuss the future of europe/

**Azerbaijan has progressive approach to demining**; O'Donnell comment on post-conflict demining and reconstruction, EdNews, Baku, 20 June 2022. https://ednews.net/en/news/politics/525372-azerbaijan-has-progressive-approach-to-demining

**Babi Yar: A Nazi Massacre of Jewish Ukrainians in 1941,** a review curated by author Matthew A. McIntosh, Public Historian, and published online by **Brewminate**, 7 April 2022: <a href="https://brewminate.com/babi-yar-a-nazi-massacre-of-jewish-ukrainians-in-1941/">https://brewminate.com/babi-yar-a-nazi-massacre-of-jewish-ukrainians-in-1941/</a>

And referring to commemorative events in 2006:

https://web.archive.org/web/20120315163636/http://www.un.org.ua/en/information-centre/news/420-2006-09-28

United Nations In Modern Society: A Toothless Behemoth? An Analysis Of The United Nations' Peacemaking Role, (with reference to an O'Donnell article) by Francesco Elio Patanè (Master's Programme in Constitutional Law and Human Rights), Umeå University, Sweden, Spring 2022. <a href="https://www.diva-portal.org/smash/get/diva2:1675472/FULLTEXT01.pdf">https://www.diva-portal.org/smash/get/diva2:1675472/FULLTEXT01.pdf</a>

'We are Here at the Invitation of the Legitimate Government': Providing Air Support to Ukraine, Kyiv-based Paul Niland considers the options available to help Ukraine put an end to Vladimir Putin's military machine once and for all; refers to O'Donnell's proposals for a coalition of nations to act, based on the 'Responsibility To Protect' principle, to implement a No-Fly Zone. Published by Byline Times, London, 7 March 2022. <a href="https://bylinetimes.com/2022/03/07/we-are-here-at-the-invitation-of-the-legitimate-government-providing-air-support-to-ukraine/">https://bylinetimes.com/2022/03/07/we-are-here-at-the-invitation-of-the-legitimate-government-providing-air-support-to-ukraine/</a>

**Des Origines de la Propriété de Magny la Ville**, by Bernard Flory, October 2021 [47pp; deep private study of the family of Pechpeyroux Comminges de Guitaut, one of whom was the last Comtesse O'Donnell in France, and their Château de Souhey].

**International Scientific And Technical Cooperation: Practice**; recommended by the Methodical Council of Igor Sikorsky Kyiv Polytechnic Institute as a textbook for foreign students studying in the specialty 051 'Economy': O'Donnell cited viz human development and European integration. Published by the Igor Sikorsky Kyiv Polytechnic Institute of the National Technical University of Ukraine, Kyiv, October, 2021.

https://ela.kpi.ua/server/api/core/bitstreams/8b527e2d-31aa-4dfa-a27c-0eac6d0b0aba/content

**International Berlin Forum** - *In Search of Lost Universalism*, 6th International Forum - *In Celebration of the 75th Anniversary of the United Nations*, under the auspices of Association of Schools of Political Studies of the Council of Europe, 21 November 2020 (400 authorized participants from 35 countries and 62 regions of Russia).

https://www.academia.edu/44643557/Multilateralism and the Future of Global Governance

«Государство является одним из нескольких игроков с универсалистским потенциалом, но этот потенциал очень ограничен» ("The state is one of several players with universalist potential, but this potential is very limited") published online by the School of Civic Education, September 2020.

https://sapere.online/kak-reformirovat-oon-i-vernut-mir-k-mnogostoronnosti/

**Cultural Diplomacy in the Service of Serbia,** by Dr Vjera Mujović. published by the Institute for Political Studies, Belgrade, being her doctoral dissertation of May 2019 at the Faculty of Media & Communications, Singidunum University, Belgrade, Serbia) (Др Вјера Мујовић, *Културна дипломатија у служби Србије*, Издавач: Институт за политичке студије Београд, Београд, 2020) (367pp; ISBN 978-86-7419-323-5) Belgrade, 2020.

https://plus.cobiss.net/cobiss/cg/cnr latn/bib/14407177

https://www.rts.rs/radio/radio-beograd-1/4176212/kulturna-diplomatija-u-sluzbi-srbije.html

**Book review** (*The O'Donnells of Tyrconnell – A Hidden Legacy*) by Kenneth Ferguson, LL.B, Ph.D., Honorary Editor of The Irish Sword, the Journal of the Military History Society of Ireland, Volume XXXII, no. 129, Dublin, Summer 2020.

https://www.academia.edu/44461996/Book Review by Kenneth Ferguson of The ODonnells of Tyrconnell A Hidden Legacy

**The Astonishing History of One of Ireland's Great Clans** (Book review of *The O'Donnells of Tyrconnell – A Hidden Legacy*) by J. Anthony Gaughan, in *The Irish Catholic*, Dublin, 12 March 2020. <a href="https://www.irishcatholic.com/the-astonishing-history-of-one-of-irelands-great-clans/">https://www.irishcatholic.com/the-astonishing-history-of-one-of-irelands-great-clans/</a>

**Celebrating Ireland in Belgrade,** book review by Michael Merrigan (front cover story about the book *The O'Donnells of Tyrconnell – A Hidden Legacy*) published in *Ireland's Genealogical Gazette*, Volume 15, no. 2, monthly newsletter of the Genealogical Society of Ireland, February 2020. https://issuu.com/gensocireland/docs/ireland s genealogical gazette february 2020

**Book review** (*The O'Donnells of Tyrconnell – A Hidden Legacy*) by Caitlin Bain, & Brian Donovan, Director, Eneclann; published by Eneclann – *The Irish Family History Centre*, Dublin, 26 January 2020. <a href="https://www.irishfamilyhistorycentre.com/article/the-odonnells-of-tyrconnell-a-hidden-legacy/">https://www.irishfamilyhistorycentre.com/article/the-odonnells-of-tyrconnell-a-hidden-legacy/</a>

**International Berlin Forum** - *In Search of Lost Universalism*, under the auspices of Association of Schools of Political Studies of the Council of Europe and hosted by the Konrad Adenauer Foundation, Berlin, November, 2018 <a href="http://www.berlinforum.online/">http://www.berlinforum.online/</a>

**Collateral Impact: The ICTY's Influence on Institutional Reform in Serbia,** by Jovana Mihajlović Trbovc, in International Criminal Tribunals as Actors of Domestic Change: The Impact on Institutional Reform Vol. 1, Peter Lang, 2018.

https://www.academia.edu/38542560/Collateral Impact The ICTYs Influence on Institutional Reform in Serbia

Final Communiqué – InterAction Council, 34<sup>th</sup> Annual Plenary, Dublin, May 2017.

https://www.interactioncouncil.org/our-work/meetings/past-plenary-meetings/34th-annual-plenary-meeting

and

 $\underline{https://www.interactioncouncil.org/sites/default/files/34th\%20Annual\%20Plenary\%20Meeting\%20final\%20communique.pdf}$ 

Ethical and Durable Approaches to Migrant and Refugee Issues, InterAction Council, Limassol, Cyprus, January 2019. <a href="https://www.interactioncouncil.org/our-work/meetings/high-level-expert-group-meetings/ethical-and-durable-approaches-migrant-and">https://www.interactioncouncil.org/our-work/meetings/high-level-expert-group-meetings/ethical-and-durable-approaches-migrant-and</a>

Краљевски пар на изложби "Карађорђевићи и Обреновићи у збиркама Историјског музеја Србије - Royal Couple visit exhibition "Karadjordjevic and Obrenovic Dynasties at Historic Museum of Serbia Archives", with Ambassador O'Donnell, Belgrade, 22 August, 2013. <a href="https://klubmonarhista.blogspot.com/2013/08/blog-post\_22.html">https://klubmonarhista.blogspot.com/2013/08/blog-post\_22.html</a>

Charizma - Buletín Vel'vyslanectva / Charism - Embassy Newsletter, issues no. 1, 2, 3, etc. Wrote all articles, edited and published by the Embassy of the Sovereign Military Hospitaller Order of Saint John of Jerusalem, of Rhodes, and of Malta in the Slovak Republic in Bratislava, 2010-2012. [Articles: Presentation of letters of credence to President Ivan Gašparovič of Slovakia; Meeting with First lady; Activities of the Order; Rome visit to Grand Magistry; St. John's Day; Global diplomatic presence; Visit to Military Ordinariate; Pilgrimage to Lourdes; Recruitment of auxiliaries into Volunteer Corps in Slovakia; Swiss Association donates to Slovakia; Feast of the Patron, St. John the Baptist; Roma childrens' integration projects; Christmas Punch fundraiser in Nitra; International Diplomacy], Bratislava, 2010-2013.

**Zvrchovany Maltézsky rád -Tradícia pre Dnesok - Medzinárodná konferencia - Univerzita Komenského -** *Tradition and Modernity - International Conference on 900<sup>th</sup> anniversary of the Sovereign Order of Malta*, SMOM & Comenius University, Bratislava, 15 November 2012 <a href="http://www.orderofmalta.sk/konferencia-maltezskeho-radu-na-slovensku-tradicia-pre-dnesok/">https://www.orderofmalta.sk/konferencia-maltezskeho-radu-na-slovensku-tradicia-pre-dnesok/</a> and <a href="https://www.tkkbs.sk/view.php?cisloclanku=20121115025">https://www.tkkbs.sk/view.php?cisloclanku=20121115025</a> and <a href="https://www.vyveska.sk/zvrchovany-maltezsky-rad-tradicia-pre-dnesok-temou-konferencie.html">https://www.vyveska.sk/zvrchovany-maltezsky-rad-tradicia-pre-dnesok-temou-konferencie.html</a>

**Hilfe für Roma-Kinde** – **Ein Projekt der Slowakischen Malteser**, by Anton Gatnar, in *Die Malteser Der Souveraïne Malteser-Ritter-Orden und seine Werke in Österreich*, Ausgabe 01/2012 (describing activities in Olejnikov, LUNIK IX/Košice, Orechov Dvor/Nitra, and the Archbishop's Pastoral Centre in Košice), SMRO Gorsspriorat Österreich, Vienna, March 2012.

Veľvyslanec oceňuje odstupujúcu premiérku Dr. Ivetu Radičovú & Stretnutie s prvou dámou, Visits of Ambassador O'Donnell to the Premier Dr. Ivetu Radičovú and First Lady of Slovakia, Silvia Gašparovičová, SMOM, Bratislava, June 2010 and December 2011. <a href="http://www.orderofmalta.sk/aktivity-velvyslanectva-na-slovensku/">http://www.orderofmalta.sk/aktivity-velvyslanectva-na-slovensku/</a>

Sovereign Military Order of Malta: Social and emergency response cooperation in the meeting with the Slovak interior minister Daniel Lipsic, and Ambassador O'Donnell, on the integration of Roma minorities and the development of SMOM cooperation with the Republic of Slovakia, SMOM, Rome, 26 November 2011. <a href="https://www.orderofmalta.int/news/social-and-emergency-response-cooperation-in-the-meeting-with-the-slovak-interior-minister-daniel-lipsic/">https://www.orderofmalta.int/news/social-and-emergency-response-cooperation-in-the-meeting-with-the-slovak-interior-minister-daniel-lipsic/</a>

**UN Ukrainian office marks Holocaust**; organized by the United Nations in Ukraine in cooperation with the Ukrainian Center for Holocaust Studies. O'Donnell said the "Holocaust will always be a reminder for all people about threats that come as a result of hatred, racism and prejudice." Jewish Telegraphic Agency, New York, 27 January 2009 <a href="https://www.jta.org/2009/01/27/global/u-n-ukrainian-office-marks-holocaust">https://www.jta.org/2009/01/27/global/u-n-ukrainian-office-marks-holocaust</a>

ПРАВО Вісник - Додаток До Журналу Право Україні - Стан Дотримання Україною Міжнародних Стандартів У Галузі Прав І Свобод Людини Вступне Слово Координатора Системи ООН В Україні. Pravo Visnyk - Supplement To The Pravo Ukrainy Magazine - Status Of Ukraine's Compliance With International Standards In The Field Of Human Rights And Freedoms - Introductory speech by the UN Coordinator in Ukraine (Francis M. O'Donnell), published by Nina Karpachova, Commissioner for Human Rights, issue no.1, Kyiv, 2009 (ISSN 0132-1331)

После наводнения: кое-кто готов сам себе в хату воды налить [After the floods: some people are ready to pour water into their own homes], report on five days of late July floods in Ivano-Frankivsk, the worst in a century in Ukraine, and O'Donnell's UN assessment mission there, UNIAN, 11 August 2008. <a href="https://www.unian.net/society/136777-posle-navodneniya-koe-kto-gotov-sam-sebe-v-hatu-vodyi-nalit.html">https://www.unian.net/society/136777-posle-navodneniya-koe-kto-gotov-sam-sebe-v-hatu-vodyi-nalit.html</a>

Стан дотримання Україною міжнародних стандартів у галузі прав і свобод людини: Спеціальна доповідь Уповноваженого Верховної Ради України з прав людини. The Status of Implementation of the International Standards of Human Rights and Freedoms in Ukraine, by Nina Karpachova, Commissioner for Human Rights, (Foreword by Francis Martin O'Donnell), published by the Ombudsman of Ukraine and the United Nations in Ukraine, Kyiv, April 2008 (ISBN 966-7855-00-7)

Calendar of the Rosse Papers, edited by A.P.W. Malcomson, Irish Manuscripts Commission, Dublin, 2008 (ISBN: 978-1-874280-69-9) [refers to O'Donnell's monograph L'Esprit de Titre – from Power and Prestige to Virtual Vestige; a detailed study of the Baronage of Ireland and ancient titles in Ireland; with reference to Land Law reforms; copy provided to the Earl of Rosse, a former UNDP colleague]

The journey of the Irish Earls through Switzerland, O'Donnell Clan re-enactment 400 years later in March 2008 of part of the Flight of the Earls of Tyrconnell and Tyrone, in 1607/8. Broadcast by Swiss TV SwissInfo/SBC (SRG-SSR) Geneva, March 2008. <a href="https://www.swissinfo.ch/eng/swiss-politics/the-journey-of-the-irish-earls-through-switzerland/6519140">https://www.swissinfo.ch/eng/swiss-politics/the-journey-of-the-irish-earls-through-switzerland/6519140</a>

**UN Holocaust discussion in Ukraine,** O'Donnell warned: *the Holocaust will forever be a warning to all people of the dangers of hatred, racism and prejudice.* Jewish Telegraphic Agency, New York, 30 January 2008. <a href="https://www.jta.org/2008/01/30/default/u-n-holocaust-discussion-in-ukraine">https://www.jta.org/2008/01/30/default/u-n-holocaust-discussion-in-ukraine</a>

Honouring of Obligations and Commitments by Ukraine by co-rapporteurs: Hanne Severinsen and Renate Wohlwend based on their visit to Ukraine in October 2006 for the Committee On The Honouring Of Obligations And Commitments By Member States Of The Council Of Europe (Monitoring Committee). This is a media report on how the report was received, published by the Ukrainian Helsinki Human Rights Union, Kyiv, 6 February 2007.

https://old.helsinki.org.ua/en/articles/both-the-prime-minister-and-ministry-of-justice-responded-on-thursday-to-the-report-honouring-of-obligations-and-commitments-by-ukraine-by-co-rapporteurs-hanne-severinsen-and-renat/

**Principles of Tolerance, Pluralism, Mutual Respect, Peaceful Coexistence Must Be Upheld,** message by UN Secretary-General Kofi Annan commemorating the sixty-fifth anniversary of the tragedy of the World War II Nazi massacre at Babyn Yar, in Kyiv, delivered by O'Donnell, UN Resident Coordinator in Ukraine. UN Information Service, Vienna, 18 September 2006. <a href="https://unis.unvienna.org/unis/en/pressrels/2006/sgsm10660.html">https://unis.unvienna.org/unis/en/pressrels/2006/sgsm10660.html</a> also from New York: <a href="https://news.un.org/en/story/2006/09/194102">https://news.un.org/en/story/2006/09/194102</a>

**5th Stella Sakharova Cup 2006,** official opening ceremony of the international gymnastics championship, under the auspices of the United Nations Office in Ukraine and devoted to the 20th Commemoration Anniversary of Chornobyl Catastrophe. Kyiv, 27 March 2006. <a href="https://www.gymmedia.com/artistic-gymnastics/5th-STELLA-SAKHAROVA-CUP-2006">https://www.gymmedia.com/artistic-gymnastics/5th-STELLA-SAKHAROVA-CUP-2006</a>

**The United Nations Development Programme – A Better Way?** by Craig N. Murphy, published by Cambridge University Press, New York & Cambridge 2006 ((372pp; ISBN 0-521-68316-5). O'Donnell's work and influence in East Timor in early 2000, cited (p.341). https://assets.cambridge.org/97805218/64695/frontmatter/9780521864695 frontmatter.pdf

Global Stability through Multilateralism – Why a strong United Nations is essential to defend freedom and ensure prosperity, lecture at Kyiv-Mohyla Academy, Kyiv, 29 March 2005; published (pp 11-15/Ukrainian & 16-19/English) in Memory of Centuries: Ukraine in the UN – dedicated to 60<sup>th</sup> anniversary of the UN, [issue no.5 (56) 2005]; General Directorate for Rendering Services to Diplomatic Missions, reg'd by Attestation Commission of Ukraine (VAK) as special issue on Historical Sciences (Bulletin of VAK 1999, no.6); rec'd by Ministry of Education & Science of Ukraine as reference work (1/9-11; 14 January 2003 [chief editor: Stanislav Nikolayenko].

**Living with the Legacy - SALW Survey Republic of Serbia**, report on post-conflict progress with assessing, restricting, and destroying millions of small arms and light weapons (SALW) in Serbia, a programme launched by O'Donnell; published by UNDP and SaferWorld, Belgrade and London, 2005 (ISBN: 86-7728-002-2).

https://www.saferworld-global.org/resources/publications/21-living-with-the-legacy https://gsdrc.org/document-library/living-with-the-legacy-salw-survey-of-the-republic-of-serbia/

**Часопис Парламент, № 3/2005; 100** Днів Роботи Уряду: Оцінка Міжнародних Експертів ("Parliament Magazine", No. 3/2005; 100 Days Of The Government's Work: Assessment Of International Experts). O'Donnell commentary: «Прозорість Інформації — Це Фундаментальний Принцип Демократії» (Transparency Of Information Is A Fundamental Principle Of Democracy; page 26), Kyiv, 3/2005. <a href="https://parlament.org.ua/wp-content/uploads/2005/02/2005\_3.pdf">https://parlament.org.ua/wp-content/uploads/2005/02/2005\_3.pdf</a>

**Открытие Фестиваля "Золотая Лилия"** (Golden Liliya Festival Opening – 60<sup>th</sup> Anniversary of the United Nations), Introductory speech by Francis O'Donnell, Kyiv, 2005

**Маровиђ Са О'донелом И Осијатинским - Платформа за развој СЦГ**, Политика, 9 септембер, 2004 (Танјуг) *Marović With O'Donnell And Osiatinski - Platform for the development of Serbia-Montenegro*, Politika, 9 September 9 2004 (Tanjug)

**Vekarić: Hag ustupa veliki broj predmeta pocetkom 2005,** Danas, Belgrade, 9 Septembar 2004. *Vekarić: The Hague (ICTY) is ready to handover a large number of cases (for domestic prosecution) at the beginning of 2005*, Danas, Belgrade, September 9, 2004

**Experts meet on war crimes** (in Dubrovnik), by Matt Prodger; O'Donnell not mentioned but was the principal organiser of the conference for prosecutors from the former Yugoslav countries), BBC, 6 September 2004 <a href="https://www.etan.org/et2004/september/01-07/03expert.htm">https://www.etan.org/et2004/september/01-07/03expert.htm</a>

Stuck in the Past: Energy, Environment & Poverty in Serbia and Montenegro, by Aleksandar Kovacević, et al. Foreword by O'Donnell, UNDP, Belgrade, 2004 (ISBN 86-905231-0-3) <a href="https://www.academia.edu/37669668/Stuck">https://www.academia.edu/37669668/Stuck</a> in the Past Energy Environment and Poverty in S erbia and Montenegro

Millennium Development Goals and the Poverty Eradication Strategy in Serbia - The Thirteenth Meetings of NGOs & UNDP, published by The Chancellery of H.R.H Crown Prince Alexander II of Yugoslavia, Royal Palace, Belgrade, 16 September 2004. <a href="https://web.archive.org/web/20061010064609/http://www.royalfamily.org/statements/state-det/state-1016.htm">https://web.archive.org/web/20061010064609/http://www.royalfamily.org/statements/state-det/state-1016.htm</a> and

https://royalfamily.org/the-thirtieth-meeting-of-the-ngos-in-the-royal-palace-millennium-aims-of-the-development-of-the-undp-and-the-strategy-for-the-decrease-of-the-poverty/

**Housing in South Eastern Europe - solving a puzzle of challenges;** sector note following up the *Ministerial Housing Conference for South Eastern Europe* (Paris, 23–24 April 2003) within the framework of the Stability Pact for South Eastern Europe, published by the Council of Europe Development Bank and the World Bank, Paris, March 2004. https://web.archive.org/web/20060923102544/http://www.coebank.org/pdf/gb/Housing in SEE.pdf

**\$1.2M for Capacity Building in the Serbian Ministry of Finance,** agreement on a one-year project on capacity building for human resources management in the Ministry of Finance and Economy, 20 February 2004. https://www.arhiva.serbia.gov.rs/news/2004-02/20/333204.html

**Labour Ministry, UNDP launch Beautiful Serbia project**, funded by the governments of Canada, the Netherlands, Austria and Greece, as well as UNDP, to help ease the impact of economic transition on unemployment until the country creates the conditions for sustainable growth, replicating a similar project in Bulgaria. Serbian Government, Belgrade, 19 February 2004. <a href="https://www.arhiva.serbia.gov.rs/news/2004-02/19/333184.html">https://www.arhiva.serbia.gov.rs/news/2004-02/19/333184.html</a>

**UNDP, SIDA assist Serbia's sustainable development strategy;** for a *Strategy for Sustainable Development of Serbia-Montenegro through Cooperation between Countries*. Serbian Government, Belgrade, 10 February 2004. <a href="https://www.arhiva.serbia.gov.rs/news/2004-02/10/333092.html">https://www.arhiva.serbia.gov.rs/news/2004-02/10/333092.html</a>

Common Country Assessment Of The UN Team, 24th meeting of international NGOs, UN agencies & the Red Cross. Hosted by Crown Prince Alexander II & Crown Princess Katherine. O'Donnell presented the CCA, Belgrade, January 2004. <a href="https://royalfamily.org/common-country-assessment-of-the-un-team/">https://royalfamily.org/common-country-assessment-of-the-un-team/</a>

Capacity Building Fund Project to be continued. Agreement between Bozidar Djelic, Minister of Finance and Economy, on behalf of the Serbian Government, and Francis O'Donnell, UNDP Resident Representative in Serbia and Montenegro, to develop a team of civil servants capable of strategically managing the work of the Ministry, Serbian Government, Belgrade, October 2003. <a href="https://mfin.gov.rs/en/archive/capacity-building-fund-project-to-be-continued-2">https://mfin.gov.rs/en/archive/capacity-building-fund-project-to-be-continued-2</a>

**Support To Republic Of Serbia National Weapons Amnesty**, by SEESAC South Eastern Europe Clearinghouse for the Control of Small Arms and Light Weapons, Belgrade, 14 April 2003. <a href="https://www.seesac.org/f/img/File/Res/Activity-Reports/AR-1-Serbia-Weapons-Amnesty-292.pdf">https://www.seesac.org/f/img/File/Res/Activity-Reports/AR-1-Serbia-Weapons-Amnesty-292.pdf</a>

**РЕЧИ ЗА ПАМЕЊЕ - др Зоран ђинђић, премијер Србије (25. ануар 2001. - 12. март 2003.)** - О Реформама - Визида модерне европске Србие - Последье премидерово писмо, Реформатор - Гласило Запослених У Аржавној Управи Србизе, III 2003. Рој 21 Година III — [Memorable Sayings of Dr. Zoran Djindjic, Prime Minister of Serbia (January 25, 2001 - March 12, 2003) - ON REFORMS - Vision of a modern European Serbia - The Prime Minister's last letter (to Francis M. O'Donnell), Reformator - Gazette of Employees in the Public Administration of Serbia, III 2003. Anniversary Of 21 Years III -], Belgrade, March 2003.

Saradnja u razvoju - Sef UNDP u Srbiji i Crnoj Gori Frensis O Donel boravio juče u Podgorici gdje je razgovarao sa premijerom Milom Đukanovićem i predsjednikom Skupstine Filipom Vujanovićem. U razgovoru sa Đukanovićem najavljeno je da će UNDP pružiti konkretnu podršku crnogorskim reformama krozu realizaciju projekata koji su na liniji ciljeva Ujedinjenih nacija, Vijesti, Podgorica, 27 februar 2003 [Cooperation in development - Head of UNDP in

Serbia and Montenegro Francis O Donel was in Podgorica yesterday where he talked with Prime Minister Milo Đukanović and Speaker of the Assembly Filip Vujanović. In the conversation with Đukanović, it was announced that UNDP will provide concrete support to Montenegrin reforms through the implementation of projects that are in line with the goals of the United Nations, Vijesti, Podgorica, 27 February 2003]

Round table rallies experts to help Yugoslavia's transition, national stakeholder consultation convened by O'Donnell/UNDP with state leaders, for debate on transforming the Federal Republic of Yugoslavia into a state union of Serbia and Montenegro. Reliefweb, UN/OCHA, Belgrade, 31 July 2002. https://reliefweb.int/report/serbia/round-table-rallies-experts-help-yugoslavias-transition

Milo Djukanović o zahtevima za čvršću unitarnu zajednicu - Put u rušenje sporazuma [Milo Djukanović on demands for a stronger unitary community - The road to breaking the agreement – report on his meeting with Francis M. O'Donnell], Blic - Najcitaniji dnevnik u Jugoslaviji [The most read daily in Yugoslavia], Belgrade, 9 July 2002, no. 1942

**Т**укановић Са О'донелијем - Нико нема право да тражи нове уступке, Дан, Подгорица • Уторак, 9. Зул 2002, Година Iv Бро 1231 [*Dukanović With O'Donnell - No One Has the Right to Demand New Concessions*, Dan, Podgorica, Tuesday, 9 July 2002, Year IV, Issue 1231]

Предсједник Републике Црне Горе Мило Ђукановић - Примио Френсиса О' Донела И У Разговору Оцијенио: - Наметање Чвршне Задеднице Руши Споразум, Побледа Подгорица, уторак, 9. ј 2002, Година LVIII, Бро 13134 [President Of The Republic Of Montenegro Milo Đukanović Received Francis O' Donnell and in the conversation he assessed: - Forcing tighter unity destroys The Agreement, Pobleda, Podgorica, Tuesday, 9 July 2002, Year LVIII No. 13134]

**Јуче У Подгорици - Вујановић примио Френсиса О'Донела,** Подгорица, уторак, 9. ј 2002, Година LVIII, Бро 13134 [*Yesterday In Podgorica — (Prime Minister) Vujanović received Francis O'Donnell*, Pobleda, Podgorica, Tuesday, 9 July 2002, Year LVIII No. 13134]

Iduce Sedmice U Beogradu - Djukanović na skupu o tranziciji vlasti [Next Week in Belgrade - Djukanovic at the meeting on the transition of power (citing meeting his meeting with Francis M. O'Donnell], Publika, Podgorica, 9 July 2002.

New Developments – the United Nations Development Programme in the Federal Republic of Yugoslavia, published by UNDP, Belgrade (under the direction & coordination of O'Donnell; some issues missing here or not online)

Vol.2, Special Edition, July 2002. [Articles: Strategic Roundtable on Governance Transition in the Federal Republic of Yugoslavia, featuring statements by FRY President Vojislav Kostunica, Yugoslav Deputy Prime Minister Miroljub Labus, President of the Republic of Montenegro, Milo Djukanovic, Serbian Deputy Prime Minister Zarko Korac, Speaker Dragoljub Micunovic, along with Kalman Mizsei/ASG, Danuta Hubner, Karel Dyba, Ivan Krastev, Rene Castro, Susan Woodward, Jeffrey Sachs, and Francis M. O'Donnell, who negotiated its organisation and hosting by UNDP, to avert abrupt/violent fragmentation, and support the political dialogue prompted by Javier Solana, leading to the transition from the Federal Republic of Yugoslavia to the State Union of Serbia and Montenegro]

- **Vol. 2, Issue 4, August/September 2002**. [Articles: Milestone on Road to Judicial Reform The Opening of the Judicial Training Centre; UNDP helps resurrect School Facilities in southern Serbia; Workshop on New Energy Policies in Southeast Europe jointly organised by IEA and UNDP; "No Guns Please We Are Children" Exhibition in the Cultural Centre Rex, by UNICEF, UNDP, and SEESAC; Instilling a Results-Oriented Ethos within the Public Administration of the Republic of Serbia; Poverty Reduction Strategy Paper; UNDP at the World Summit on Sustainable Development in Johannesburg]
- Vol. 2, Issue 3, May/June 2002. [Articles: Belgrade Clearinghouse to help curb small arms in South-East Europe; Job Programme helps ease tensions in southern Serbia; UNDP partners with Coordinating body to boost development across southern Serbia; Conference- State and Civil Society Partners in Poverty Eradication, hosted by Serbian Ministry of International Economic Relations and UNDP; FRY President Kostunica meets UN Resident Coordinator O'Donnell; Report Employment, Labour Market and Standard of Living in Montenegro]
- Vol. 2, Issue 2, March/April 2002. [Articles: UN Secretary-General Appoints United Nations Resident Coordinator in the Federal republic of Yugoslavia; Newsflash Capacity Building Fund deploys over 100 national and international consultants to support reforms; Energy Sector Rehabilitation Technical Coordination Conference; UNDP Partners the European Agency for Reconstruction to provide Short-Term Employment in Southern Serbia; Fact-Finding Mission for Military Conversion as an Element of Security Sector Reform in the Federal Republic of Yugoslavia; Building a Culture of Tolerance: UNDP Helps establish Multi-Ethnic Centre in Belgrade]. https://reliefweb.int/report/serbia/undp-yugoslavia-newsletter-new-developments-vol-2-issue-2-marapr-2002
- Vol. 1, Issue 4, Nov/Dec. 2001 [Articles: 1 December World Aids Day 2001 (by Mark Malloch Brown, UNDP Administrator); Newsflash – UNDP's Country Cooperation Framework (2002-2004) presented; UNAIDS Theme Group – World AIDS Day Campaign in Yugoslavia; Words from the Field – UNDP in Southern Serbia, by Peter Simkin; Accelerating Economic Reform in Yugoslavia - UNDP's Capacity Building Fund extends its support to the Serbian Ministry of Finance and Economy; The Capacity Building Fund supports the Establishment of the Institute for Public Administration; the Consolidated UNInter-Agency Appeal 2002 for Yugoslavia]. https://reliefweb.int/report/serbia/undp-yugoslavia-newsletter-new-developments-vol-1issue-4-novdec-2001
- **Vol. 1, Issue 3, October 2001** [Articles focused on the organization's activities and progress in the Federal Republic of Yugoslavia (FRY) one year after significant changes in the country, according to ReliefWeb. The newsletter highlighted *UNDP's strategy centred on national recovery through governance and institutional reforms, capacity building, human security, social cohesion, municipal development, and poverty eradication. The strategy emphasized partnerships with key stakeholders like the government, civil society, and the international community].*
- **Vol. 1, Issue 2, September 2001** [Articles: The issue highlighted the *Capacity Building Fund* (CBF) and its role in supporting institutional development and legal and public administration reforms. *CBF supported institutional development, including legal and public administration reforms in ten partner institutions in Serbia.* The issue also

mentioned a conference on *energy sector rehabilitation*, coordinated by UNDP and held in Belgrade].

Vol. 1, Issue 1, June 2001. (Inaugural issue coinciding with Donor Conference for FRY held Brussels, 29 June 2001) [Articles: UNDP in Yugoslavia – Accelerating Reform and Recovery; Building Capacity for Institutional Reform; Eco-Development Initiative in Montenegro; Strengthening Civil Society Partnerships in Yugoslavia; UNDP at the Third NGO Forum (it initiated 1<sup>st</sup>); City-to-City Programme – Decentralised Cooperation for Human Development; Supporting Peace, Stability and Development in Southern Serbia]. https://reliefweb.int/report/serbia/undp-yugoslavia-newsletter-new-developments-vol-1-issue-1-jun-2001

**FRY President Kostunica meets UN Resident Coordinator O'Donnell in Belgrade**, to convey special UNDP report on *Military Conversion as an Element of Security Sector Reform*; 17 June 2002. Reported by UN/OCHA in: <a href="https://reliefweb.int/report/serbia/fry-president-kostunica-meets-un-resident-coordinator-odonnell-belgrade">https://reliefweb.int/report/serbia/fry-president-kostunica-meets-un-resident-coordinator-odonnell-belgrade</a>

**Donor Conference in Brussels: Statement by Francis M. O'Donnell UNDP Representative in the Federal Republic of Yugoslavia,** on *Recovery & Development in the Federal Republic of Yugoslavia*, noting strategic partnership with new leadership of the country, and capacity in-country expanded five-fold since October 2000, empowered to fast-track programme implementation. UNDP, Belgrade, 29 June 2001 <a href="https://reliefweb.int/report/serbia/donor-conference-statement-francis-m-odonnell-undp-representative-fry">https://reliefweb.int/report/serbia/donor-conference-statement-francis-m-odonnell-undp-representative-fry</a>

Capacity Building Fund to aid government reform in Yugoslavia, to support vital reforms in public administration to bolster democratic rule in the Federal Republic of Yugoslavia and the Republic of Serbia. Belgrade, 15 March 2001. Reported by UN/OCHA in: <a href="https://reliefweb.int/report/serbia/capacity-building-fund-aid-government-reform-yugoslavia">https://reliefweb.int/report/serbia/capacity-building-fund-aid-government-reform-yugoslavia</a>

У Београдској Канцеларили Програма Ун За Разво - Основан Фонд за реформу институција, Политика, Београд, Уторак 13 Март 2001, Бро 31383 - Година XCVIII [In The Belgrade Office of the UN Development Programme - Institutional Reform Fund Established (i.e. the Capacity Building Fund), Politika, Belgrade, Tuesday, 13 March, 2001, No. 31383 - Year XCVIII]

UNDP and Fund for An Open Society team up to support institutional reforms in Yugoslavia; launch of the Capacity Building Fund (CBF) to support institutional reforms in the Federal Republic of Yugoslavia; UNDP, Belgrade, 12 March 2001. Reported by UN/OCHA in: <a href="https://reliefweb.int/report/serbia/undp-and-fund-open-society-team-support-institutional-reforms-yugoslavia">https://reliefweb.int/report/serbia/undp-and-fund-open-society-team-support-institutional-reforms-yugoslavia</a>

UN shifts emphasis from relief to development in Montenegro; O'Donnell's launch of a preparatory programme to build capacities for long term development. Reliefweb/UNOCHA, 25 January 2001. https://reliefweb.int/report/serbia/un-shifts-emphasis-relief-development-montenegro

**OCHA Belgrade: Weekly Situation Report 12-18 Jan 2001.** Launch of a structured, comprehensive inter-agency assessment mission to South Serbia, led by O'Donnell, to help prevent further conflict, secure human rights, and inclusive governance after the overthrow of the Miloševic regime. UN/OCHA, Belgrade, 18 January 2001.

https://www.unocha.org/publications/report/serbia/ocha-belgrade-weekly-situation-report-12-18-jan-2001 Follow-up after mission completion:

https://www.unocha.org/publications/report/serbia/ocha-belgrade-weekly-situation-report-05-feb-24-feb-2001

**UNDP** and Italy to help the displaced in Yugoslavia cope with winter. O'Donnell initiated an assistance programme to meet some of the immediate needs of the most vulnerable population in the Federal Republic of Yugoslavia. Reliefweb/UNOCHA, Belgrade, 31 October 2000. <a href="https://reliefweb.int/report/serbia/undp-and-italy-help-displaced-yugoslavia-cope-winter">https://reliefweb.int/report/serbia/undp-and-italy-help-displaced-yugoslavia-cope-winter</a>

**Irishman heads UN programme in Belgrade,** by Deaglán de Bréadún, Irish Times, Dublin, 13 Oct. 2000. <a href="https://www.irishtimes.com/news/irishman-heads-un-programme-in-belgrade-1.1108800">https://www.irishtimes.com/news/irishman-heads-un-programme-in-belgrade-1.1108800</a>

**Crisis Prevention And Development Cooperation** An Overview Of The Workshop by the Carnegie Council on Ethics and International Affairs, and Friedrich Ebert Stiftung; O'Donnell insights on conflict prevention, and governance issues. (pp. 25-27), published by Friedrich Ebert Stiftung, New York, 19 April 2000. <a href="https://library.fes.de/pdf-files/bueros/ny/00934.pdf">https://library.fes.de/pdf-files/bueros/ny/00934.pdf</a>

**Daily Press Briefing Of Office For Spokesman For Secretary-General,** on a Kennedy/O'Donnell assessment mission to Angola, where deteriorating security was hampering emergency aid delivery, UN Headquarters, New York, 17 November 1998. <a href="https://press.un.org/en/1998/19981117.db111798.html">https://press.un.org/en/1998/19981117.db111798.html</a> also: <a href="https://allafrica.com/stories/199811180100.html">https://allafrica.com/stories/199811180100.html</a>

Angola Humanitarian Situation Report 05-11 November 1998. As the UN Inter-Agency Standing Committee decided on 2 November to extend the mandate of UCAH through 1999, the Under Secretary General for Humanitarian Affairs, Sergio Vieira de Mello, sent the Chief of the Emergency Liaison Brunch (ELB-OCHA), Kevin Kennedy, to Angola to analyse the overall humanitarian situation with O'Donnell for UNDP. Reliefweb, UN/OCHA, 12 November 1998. https://reliefweb.int/report/angola/angola-humanitarian-situation-report-05-11-november-1998

**Patterns of Partnership: UN Peacekeeping and Peoples' Peacebuilding** by Tatsuro Kunugi, Elise Boulding, Jan Oberg, published by The Transnational Foundation for Peace and Future Research, Sweden, 1996. Previous works by self, cited as references. https://boktraven.se/books/info/Patterns%20of%20partnership/Tatsuro%20Kunugi/eng/

**Tolerance: Respecting Diversity in a Complex World**, pp.25-38, second chapter of 258-page book **Uluslararasi Hosgoru Kongresi - International Congress on Tolerance BILDIRILER** published by Ministry of Culture, Turkey, in November 1995 (ISBN 975-7978-02-8) based on conference held in Antalya, Turkey, 10-12 June 1995.

https://library.ciu.edu.tr/cgi-bin/koha/opac-detail.pl?biblionumber=40579

Previous work, and interview with author quoted extensively in **Keeping the Peace: Exploring civilian alternatives in conflict prevention** by Lisa Schirch, published by **Life & Peace Institute**, Uppsala, October 1995 (132pp, ISBN 91-87748-26-6).

https://books.google.ie/books/about/Keeping the peace.html?id=Z2dSNcIybZUC&redir\_esc=y

**Tomorrow's Turkey Today - The Ankara Roundtable on Human Sustainability**, (163 pages), contribution in pp.119-122 on the linkage between global governance and local environmental management, published by **Indigenous Development International**, Cambridge, UK, in 1996 (ISBN 1-900164-01-9), based on Ankara Roundtable, June 1995.

**International Cooperation for Drug Control**, published in **Turkish Daily News**, 30 June 1995.

**Some Foreign Policy Options for Ireland** (40-p; submitted by invitation of Government of Ireland for a *White Paper on Foreign Policy*; Ankara, May 1995. The eventual government document, "*Challenges and Opportunities Abroad – White Paper on Foreign Policy*" (348 pages, April 1996; ISBN 0-7076-2385-5), published by the Department of Foreign Affairs, reflects several suggestions, with submission listed on p. 342. Submission lodged by Government in the National Archives. <a href="https://www.academia.edu/123876790/Some Foreign Policy Options for Ireland White Paper Contribution May 1995">https://www.academia.edu/123876790/Some Foreign Policy Options for Ireland White Paper Contribution May 1995</a>

Meeting the Humanitarian Challenge - UNV's Work between Conflict and Development, 43-page booklet published by United Nations Volunteers, Geneva, 1995, foreword by Brenda McSweeney, Executive Coordinator (edited by Maria Keating).

Third Party Civilian Peace Processes in Conflict Situations, 2<sup>nd</sup> chapter (pp.11-24) in Civil Intervention - The Role of NGOs in Conflict Prevention, Pax Christi Internat'l, Brussels, 1995.

One of several contributors to **Towards a Global Alliance of Peace Services**, published by Life and Peace Institute, Uppsala, Sweden, 1994 (co-funded by SIDA and Swedish Ministry of Foreign Affairs).

Contributions quoted and acknowledged in Chapters 2 and 13 of **Seeds of Peace**, **Harvest for Life** by Sr. Mary Evelyn Jegen, SND (**Abbey Press**, St. Meinrad, Indiana, USA, 1994).

**Letter from Pat O'Donnell**, published in **Irish-Arab News**: *The Quarterly Journal of the Irish-Arab Society*, Spring 1980, recounting how the idea to create the Society was set out by his son, Francis M. O'Donnell hosting friends Akram Dajani and Muhammad Shahrour, in November 1968 (page 22).

<u>UN SYSTEM OFFICIAL DOCUMENTS PUBLISHED</u> [Cited or Coordinated/Edited/Finalised] [role: coordinated consultations with Governments, Embassies, and UN agencies; edited inputs, finalised]

Human Development and Ukraine's European Choice (Human Development Report) UNDP, Kyiv, Ukraine, May 2008 (Preface signed).

**A Call to Action: Prioritise Prevention** – report of a fact-finding mission to flood-affected regions of Ukraine, UN, Kyiv, Ukraine, 6-8 August 2008.

**Responsible Business Directory** – **Ukraine,** 1<sup>st</sup> edition, with forewords by Ukraine's President, Prime Minister, and UN Resident Coordinator Francis M. O'Donnell, (ISBN 978-966-7048-81-5), published by **KIC,** Kyiv, Ukraine, 2007.

United Nations Development Assistance Framework, Ukraine (2006-2010); Kyiv, Ukraine, August 2005.

Living with the Legacy – SALW Survey in Republic of Serbia – SACISCG - UNDP Small Arms Control in Serbia and Montenegro, UNDP/Belgrade & Saferworld/London, 2005 [SALW Survey, 2005 ISBN: 86-7728-002-2] https://www.files.ethz.ch/isn/124882/SerbianSurvey\_eng.pdf

United Nations Development Assistance Framework, Serbia-Montenegro (2005-2009); Belgrade, Serbia-Montenegro, 2004.

**Common Country Assessment for Serbia and Montenegro** [Joint UN system inter-agency assessment of the situation in Serbia-Montenegro in relation to the UN Millennium Declaration and its Development Goals]. (United Nations, Belgrade, October 2003)

UN Compendium – Activities undertaken by the UN System in Serbia & Montenegro [A comprehensive survey of the activities of all UN agencies in Serbia-Montenegro, including non-resident agencies] (United Nations, Belgrade, October 2003)

In Memoriam – Commemoration of the Baghdad Bombing of the UN on 19 August 2003, and Symbolic Destruction of Small Arms and Light Weapons, address by Francis M. O'Donnell, UNORC, Belgrade, 19 August 2003

**Building Blocks for Reform and Recovery** –Mid-Term Report [review of UNDP's Country Cooperation Framework, i.e. its country programme for the period 2002-2004] (UNDP, Belgrade, July 2003)

Governance Transition in the Federal Republic of Yugoslavia [report on a Strategic High-Level Roundtable which brought together the Presidents, Prime Ministers and Ministers of the Federal Yugoslav Government and of the Republics of Serbia and Montenegro and a panel of eminent international leaders, to explore consequences of transforming the federation into a looser state union] (UNDP, Belgrade, July 2002)

Military Conversion as an Element of Security Sector Reform in Yugoslavia [an early report into the need for substantial security sector reform and conversion of human resources, military hardware, assets, and real estate] (UNDP, Belgrade, June 2002)

**The Challenges of Implementing the Reform Agenda** — One year after the Democratic Breakthrough [a review of progress in the process of democratisation, and in pursuing reforms, and their impact on society] (UNDP, Belgrade, January, 2002)

First Country Cooperation Framework for Yugoslavia, [UNDP's country programme of cooperation for the period 2002-2004] (UNDP, Belgrade, December 2001)

**Appuyer l'assistance humanitaire et la paix** [support to humanitarian assistance and peace, citation of Frank O'Donnell in establishing a "special roster" for emergency deployments and a new Humanitarian Relief Unit in 1991, observing that during that decade, "thousands of UN Volunteers have served in conflict and crisis zones worldwide"], UNV News #9, June 2001.

**Report of the UN Inter-Agency Assessment Mission to Southern Serbia** [led mission of 33 experts, 13 agencies, coordinated report which laid basis for UN role in conflict prevention; the report served as the framework for mobilising over US\$ 40 million by different donors for a large-scale multi-donor and bilateral series of projects to support the peace-process in southern Serbia] (UNDP, Belgrade, March 2001)

**Beyond the Democratic Breakthrough** – Vulnerability Trends & Perceptions [an early warning systems report on the country situation in the Federal Republic of Yugoslavia] (UNDP, Belgrade, February 2001)

**The Challenges of Social Cohesion** [an early warning systems report on the country situation in the Federal Republic of Yugoslavia] (UNDP, Belgrade, November 2000)

**Yugoslavia:** The Situation in the Municipalities, address delivered by O'Donnell, acting UN Humanitarian and Resident Coordinator a.i. on behalf of the agencies of the United Nations System in Yugoslavia, Reliefweb, UN/OCHA, Belgrade, 14 November 2000. https://reliefweb.int/report/serbia/yugoslavia-situation-municipalities

Transition in Governance: The UNDP Framework and How It Is Being Made Operational, UNDP, New York, June 2000; extract published online by USAID, Washington DC, 2000. <a href="https://pdf.usaid.gov/pdf\_docs/PNACM091.pdf">https://pdf.usaid.gov/pdf\_docs/PNACM091.pdf</a> and <a href="https://web.archive.org/web/20060606050355/http://www.usaid.gov/pubs/confprev/jun2000/odonn">https://web.archive.org/web/20060606050355/http://www.usaid.gov/pubs/confprev/jun2000/odonn</a> ell.html

**Suspended Transition** [an early warning systems report on the country situation in the Federal Republic of Yugoslavia] (UNDP, Belgrade, August 2000)

**Governance for Human Development** – Overview of Key Issues in Yugoslavia [The first comprehensive governance review of the situation in post-Milosevic Yugoslavia, outlining the major areas of needed external assistance to promote structural and institutional reforms; paper shared at the First Donor Conference on the F.R. Yugoslavia in Brussels, in December 2000] (UNDP, Belgrade, December 2000).

#### RESEARCH PROJECTS MANAGED

Memorialising Emigré Dignity – The Cultural Heritage of Saint Anthony's College, Leuven. 2020 marked the Quatercentenary of the first burial in the Franciscans' Chapel of Saint Anthony's College, Leuven (Belgium) i.e. that of my direct ancestor, Donal Oge O'Donnell, nephew of the famous Red Hugh O'Donnell, Prince of Tyrconnell, who left Ireland as part of the retinue of the Flight of the Earls in 1607, ending Gaelic indigenous rule in Ireland and fully yielding to English occupation for centuries to come. That is when the College was founded, and Donal Oge joined Spanish forces in Flanders, where he died in 1620. To mark this event, the Irish College Leuven with the support of the Leuven Centre for Irish Studies and the European Federation of Associations and Centres of Irish Studies hosted an online webinar with presentations from key speakers, prominent experts from Austria, Ireland, and Belgium in October 2020. The launch of the hard-copy publication of the resulting booklet, delayed due to the Covid pandemic, is scheduled for September 2025, co-sponsored by Clans of Ireland and the Genealogical Society of Ireland. Irish College Leuven, 2025.

**Tradition and Modernity** – International Conference Proceedings of the 900<sup>th</sup> Anniversary of the Sovereign Military and Hospitaller Order of St. John of Jerusalem, of Rhodes and of Malta, (initiator, coordinator and co-editor; with remarks on the Pilgrimage of Life, and Service to the Poor, and Preservation of the Faith, Preserving Values through Modern Norms, and Upholding the Tradition of Human Dignity), published by the SMOM Embassy and printed in VEDA SAV publishing, by the Slovak Academy of Sciences, Bratislava, November 2012. (ISBN 978-80-971228-0-5).

Governance Foundations for Post-Conflict Situations: UNDP's Experience (Management Development and Governance Division, Bureau for Development Policy, UNDP, New York, January 2000) [responsible for managing consultant assignment, final editing of work, writing executive summary, and publication]

https://web.archive.org/web/20060714122932/http://magnet.undp.org/Docs/crisis/monograph/Monograph.htm

Promoting Conflict Prevention and Conflict Resolution through Effective Governance: A Conceptual Survey and Literature Review (Management Development and Governance Division, Bureau for Development Policy, UNDP, New York, November 1999) [responsible for managing consultant assignment, final editing of work, and publication]. <a href="https://web.archive.org/web/20060810211922/http://magnet.undp.org/docs/crisis/mapexercise.htm">https://web.archive.org/web/20060810211922/http://magnet.undp.org/docs/crisis/mapexercise.htm</a>

Volunteers Against Conflict, initiated, co-reviewed, and cited in this collaborative effort with the Humanitarianism and War Project of the Thomas J. Watson Jr. Institute for International Studies, Brown University (USA), published by United Nations University Press and United Nations Volunteers, Tokyo and Geneva, 1996 (ISBN 92-808-0923-7). The book includes first-hand accounts of UN volunteers in Cambodia, South Africa, Mozambique, Rwanda, ex-Yugoslavia, and Somalia. This book, edited by Diane Conklin, was endorsed by Presidents Mary Robinson (Ireland), Nelson Mandela (South Africa), and Jimmy Carter (USA), and the Nobel Laureate Rigoberta Menchú Tum. <a href="https://archive.unu.edu/unupress/backlist/ab-volunteers.html">https://archive.unu.edu/unupress/backlist/ab-volunteers.html</a>

# POLICY MONOGRAPHS & DISCUSSION PAPERS WRITTEN

**Foundations for Governance and Public Administration in East Timor,** comprehensive programme developed on basis of inputs following several multi-disciplinary missions which Francis M. O'Donnell led to East Timor. *This programme became the initial basic framework for institutional capacity building in East Timor, according to SRSG Sergio Vieira de Mello, who endorsed and presented it to Lisbon Donors Conference, on 22 June 2000, and reported it to the UN Security Council on 27 June 2000.* 

**Fundamental Challenges for Crisis Prevention and Post-Conflict Recovery**, discussion paper submitted to UNDP for new business plan in context of restructuring the Organization, New York, November 1999

Guiding Principles for Development of a Comprehensive Policy Framework for Governance in Crisis Countries, discussion paper for senior management, UNDP, New York, September 1999.

Governance Foundations for Post-Conflict and Other Transitions, discussion paper for Transition Team on UNDP restructuring, New York, July 1999.

**Conflict Prevention, Response, and Post-Conflict Recovery**, discussion paper presented at meeting with European Commission (DG VIII), Brussels, November 1997.

Meeting the humanitarian challenge: UNV's work between conflict and development. Published by United Nations Volunteers, Geneva, Switzerland, 1995. Referenced: https://www.grafiati.com/en/literature-selections/united-nations-humanitarian-law/book/

**Tolerance: Respecting Diversity in a Complex World**, (7-page paper presented at International Congress on Tolerance), Antalya, Turkey, 10-12 June 1995.

**Third-Party Civilian Peace Process in Conflict Situations** (24 November 1994), 15p. presented as **invited Guest Speaker** at International Seminar "*Alternatives to Violence*", of **Pax Christi International**, in the Pastoral and Theological Center, Antwerp, Belgium.

**Rapport du Groupe Francophone**, acted as **invited Rapporteur** for the Francophone Group at the international conference on "Between Crisis and Development", UNV Special Consultation, Geneva, Switzerland, October, 1994

Humanitarian Access and the Opportunity for Building-up Peace from the Grassroots, paper presented to the international seminar "*Towards a Global Alliance of Peace Services*", held by the Christian Council of Sweden & Life & Peace Institute, at Stensnas, Stockholm, 2-4 May 1994. Reference: https://innatenonviolence.org/news/archive/1995\_04\_08\_nn.PDF

**The Concept and Promotion of Global Peace Service** (17 November 1993), 24p paper presented as **invited Guest Speaker** at the "Global Peace Service" Conference at the Church Center for the United Nations, U.N. Plaza, New York. This paper was also extensively quoted in Chapter Two of "Seeds of Peace, Harvest for Life" by Sr. Mary Evelyn Jegen, SND (**Abbey Press**, St. Meinrad, Indiana, USA, 1994). <a href="https://www.bokborsen.se/view/Mary-Evelyn-Jegen/Report-On-A-Global-Peace-Service-Consultation-See/6501914">https://www.bokborsen.se/view/Mary-Evelyn-Jegen/Report-On-A-Global-Peace-Service-Consultation-See/6501914</a>

Humanitarian Assistance & Peace Management (20p monograph) Geneva, Switzerland, 1993.

**The Continuum from Relief to Development** (20p monograph) Villars, Switzerland, November 1993).

Meeting the Humanitarian Challenge - Briefing Paper, extensive treatment of the roles of UN volunteers in humanitarian activities, widely distributed. UNV, Geneva, Switzerland, October 1993.

Conflict and Reconciliation in Northern Ireland (23p monograph), Geneva, February 1991.

**Review of the Charter of Economic Rights and Duties of States** (26 p. monograph, Geneva, Switzerland, December 1990)

The Phenomenology of Edmund Husserl (UCD, Dublin, 1975)

#### SUMMARY OF OTHER WORKS - STRATEGY/PROGRAMME PAPERS

- Consolidation de la Paix au Burundi (Janvier 1994)
- Assistance to Humanitarian Relief and Confidence-Building in Burundi (April 1994)
- **Instruments of Cooperation** (July 1992)
- Appui aux Initiatives de Base en milieu rural au Benin (1991)(40p)
- Reform of Institutionalised Child Care in Romania (Dec. 1990)(10p)
- The Concept of National Volunteers (1990)
- Advisory Services to Facilitate Poland's Economic Reform Programme (July 1990)(45p)
- Collaboration with the Private Sector: Policy Proposals, Geneva, November 1989 (18pp)
- Emergency Support to Health & Education in Angola, Geneva, September 1989 (15pp)
- **Formation Accelerée d'Enseignants** en Afrique Centrale (Mars 1989)(21p)
- Maîtrise de l'Eau en Mauritanie (Dec. 1985)
- Autosuffisance Alimentaire en Mauritanie (Dec. 1985)
- Rural Sanitation in Lesotho (1982)

AS WELL AS OVER 100 EVALUATIONS, REPORTS, AND PROJECT DOCUMENTS.

#### INTERVIEWS WITH O'DONNELL PUBLISHED OR BROADCAST

Presidente sérvio tenta "acalmar protestos e recuperar controlo da narrativa" com novas eleições, mas é "pouco provável" consegui-lo. (Serbian president tries to "calm protests and regain control of the narrative" with new elections, but is "unlikely" to succeed), article, incl. interview w/Portuguese journalist Hélder Gomes, in Lisbon's "Expresso", 24 March 2025. <a href="https://expresso.pt/internacional/europa/2025-03-24-presidente-servio-tenta-acalmar-protestos-e-recuperar-controlo-da-narrativa-com-novas-eleicoes-mas-e-pouco-provavel-consegui-lo-04c501dd">https://expresso.pt/internacional/europa/2025-03-24-presidente-servio-tenta-acalmar-protestos-e-recuperar-controlo-da-narrativa-com-novas-eleicoes-mas-e-pouco-provavel-consegui-lo-04c501dd</a>

Forumda əldə olunan razılaşmaları iştirakçılar öz ölkələrinin siyasətində tətbiq edə bilərlər (Participants can implement the agreements reached at the forum in their own countries' policies) (original in Azeri). Interview in Baku, on side of XII Global Baku Forum, 13 March 2025. <a href="https://azertag.az/xeber/forumda">https://azertag.az/xeber/forumda</a> elde olunan razilasmalari istirakchilar oz olkelerinin siyasetind e tetbiq ede bilerler-3461231

Com chamas no Parlamento e ruas cheias de manifestantes, "a crise política agrava-se" na Sérvia: "a mudança está no ar"? (With flames in Parliament and streets full of protesters, "the political crisis worsens" in Serbia: "is change in the air"?), article, incl. interview w/Portuguese journalist Hélder Gomes, in Lisbon's "Expresso", 5 March 2025. <a href="https://expresso.pt/internacional/europa/2025-03-05-com-chamas-no-parlamento-e-ruas-cheias-de-manifestantes-a-crise-politica-agrava-se-na-servia-a-mudanca-esta-no-ar-d9fe3d88">https://expresso.pt/internacional/europa/2025-03-05-com-chamas-no-parlamento-e-ruas-cheias-de-manifestantes-a-crise-politica-agrava-se-na-servia-a-mudanca-esta-no-ar-d9fe3d88</a>

Médio Oriente: Guterres deve 'empenhar-se' em 'diplomacia de vaivém intensivo' entre membros com poder de veto (Middle East - Guterres must "engage" in "intensive shuttle diplomacy" between veto-wielding members) (Original in Portuguese). Interview by Hélder Gomes, journalist, published in Expresso (Portuguese weekly), Lisbon, Portugal, 4 November 2024. <a href="https://expresso.pt/internacional/medio-oriente/guerra-israel-hamas/2024-11-04-medio-oriente-guterres-deve-empenhar-se-em-diplomacia-de-vaivem-intensivo-entre-membros-compoder-de-veto-fbf29e44">https://expresso.pt/internacional/medio-oriente/guerra-israel-hamas/2024-11-04-medio-oriente-guterres-deve-empenhar-se-em-diplomacia-de-vaivem-intensivo-entre-membros-compoder-de-veto-fbf29e44</a>

Guerra no Médio Oriente - Tanques israelitas invadiram missão da ONU no Líbano (antes de apelo de Netanyahu para uma retirada imediata). (Israeli tanks invade UN mission in Lebanon before Netanyahu demands its immediate withdrawal). Interview w/Portuguese journalist Hélder Gomes, in Lisbon's "Expresso" on Netanyahu's demanding of UN Secretary-General that UNIFIL withdraw "from harm's way" after IDF attacked it hours prior in Ramyeh, Lebanon. Expresso, Lisbon, 13 October 2024. <a href="https://expresso.pt/internacional/medio-oriente/guerra-israel-hamas/2024-10-13-tanques-israelitas-invadiram-missao-da-onu-no-libano-antes-de-apelo-de-netanyahu-para-uma-retirada-imediata--2366e666">https://expresso.pt/internacional/medio-oriente/guerra-israel-hamas/2024-10-13-tanques-israelitas-invadiram-missao-da-onu-no-libano-antes-de-apelo-de-netanyahu-para-uma-retirada-imediata--2366e666">https://expresso.pt/internacional/medio-oriente/guerra-israel-hamas/2024-10-13-tanques-israelitas-invadiram-missao-da-onu-no-libano-antes-de-apelo-de-netanyahu-para-uma-retirada-imediata--2366e666">https://expresso.pt/internacional/medio-oriente/guerra-israel-hamas/2024-10-13-tanques-israelitas-invadiram-missao-da-onu-no-libano-antes-de-apelo-de-netanyahu-para-uma-retirada-imediata--2366e666</a>

"Baixas civis não intencionais", avisos à população e declarações "retiradas do contexto": como Israel responderá às acusações de genocídio ("Unintentional civilian casualties", Warnings to the population and statements "taken out of context": how Israel will respond to accusations of genocide). article in Portuguese by Hélder Gomes, citing interview with Francis Martin O'Donnell). Expresso, Lisbon, 11 January 2024. <a href="https://expresso.pt/internacional/medio-oriente/guerra-israel-hamas/2024-01-11-Baixas-civis-nao-intencionais-avisos-a-populacao-e-declaracoes-retiradas-do-contexto-como-Israel-respondera-as-acusacoes-de-genocidio-02be491f"

Brief appearance leading **O'Donnell Clan Association** 70<sup>th</sup> anniversary, Donegal Town on 8-9 June 2024, in the **RTÉ Nationwide** programme of 11 September 2024, presented by Anne Cassin: <a href="https://www.rte.ie/player/series/nationwide/SI0000001172?epguid=IH10002393-23-0098">https://www.rte.ie/player/series/nationwide/SI0000001172?epguid=IH10002393-23-0098</a>

**Israel fez entrada relâmpago em Gaza, mas ainda não é a grande invasão** (Israel entered Gaza, but there was not a major invasion), newsletter by João Pedro Barros, referring to article by Helder Gomes and citing Francis Martin O'Donnell: "that not even Russia asked for Guterres' resignation, after several very harsh statements about the invasion of Ukraine". **Expresso,** Lisbon, 26 October 2023. <a href="https://expresso.pt/newsletters/expressomatinal/2023-10-26-Israel-fezentrada-relampago-em-Gaza-mas-ainda-nao-e-a-grande-invasao-75b0cfe9">https://expresso.pt/newsletters/expressomatinal/2023-10-26-Israel-fezentrada-relampago-em-Gaza-mas-ainda-nao-e-a-grande-invasao-75b0cfe9</a>

Guerra no Médio Oriente - Guterres poderá ter comprometido "capacidade de negociação" no conflito Israel-Hamas, mas não ficará "isolado" na ONU (Guterres may have compromised his "negotiating capacity" in the Israel-Hamas conflict, but he will not be "isolated" at the UN), analytical article by Helder Gomes partly based on interview with Francis M. O'Donnell, Expresso, Lisbon, 25 October 2023. <a href="https://expresso.pt/internacional/medio-oriente/guerra-israel-hamas/2023-10-25-Guterres-podera-ter-comprometido-capacidade-de-negociacao-no-conflito-Israel-Hamas-mas-nao-ficara-isolado-na-ONU-05677fdf">https://expresso.pt/internacional/medio-oriente/guerra-israel-hamas/2023-10-25-Guterres-podera-ter-comprometido-capacidade-de-negociacao-no-conflito-Israel-Hamas-mas-nao-ficara-isolado-na-ONU-05677fdf</a>

"Poccus останется без генераторов, компьютеров, видеокамер и даже объективов" [Russia will be left without generators, computers, video cameras and even lenses] (Comment on sanctions in dual-use technologies); interview by Jeyhun Najafov, published online by **Haqqin**, Baku, 27 June 2023. https://haqqin.az/news/287429

Analiza CNN-a o trenutnoj situaciji u Srbiji: Gnjev javnosti i lice Beograda koje se mijenja (A problem in the political culture: 'Serbians call for more than disarmament to end violence after mass shootings). CNN interview by Christian Edwards with Francis Martin O'Donnell, relayed on independent Bosnian channel Klix.ba, Sarajevo, 19 May 2023. <a href="https://www.klix.ba/vijesti/regija/analiza-cnn-a-o-trenutnoj-situaciji-u-srbiji-gnjev-javnosti-i-lice-beograda-koje-se-mijenja/230519146">https://www.klix.ba/vijesti/regija/analiza-cnn-a-o-trenutnoj-situaciji-u-srbiji-gnjev-javnosti-i-lice-beograda-koje-se-mijenja/230519146</a>

N1 (CNN affiliate): Srbija protiv nasilja i lice Beograda koje se mijenja, ((CNN analysis of the current situation in Serbia: Public anger and the changing face of Belgrade). Based on CNN interview by Christian Edwards with Francis Martin O'Donnell, relayed on independent Serbian channel N1, Belgrade, 19 May 2023. <a href="https://www.klix.ba/vijesti/regija/analiza-cnn-a-o-trenutnoj-situaciji-u-srbiji-gnjev-javnosti-i-lice-beograda-koje-se-mijenja/230519146">https://www.klix.ba/vijesti/regija/analiza-cnn-a-o-trenutnoj-situaciji-u-srbiji-gnjev-javnosti-i-lice-beograda-koje-se-mijenja/230519146</a>

CNN: 'A problem in the political culture:' Serbians call for more than disarmament to end violence after mass shootings. CNN interview by Christian Edwards with Francis Martin O'Donnell in Belgrade following the Ribnikar school massacre and the upsurge in protest demonstrations including for a change in the political culture, from the top down. CNN, Belgrade, 19 May 2023.

https://edition.cnn.com/2023/05/19/europe/serbia-mass-shootings-gun-violence-protests-intl/index.html

Azerbaijan's Ability To Cooperate With Neighbors Determined Its Development, interview with Francis M. O'Donnell, published online by Mena AFN Trend, Baku, 10 March 2023. <a href="https://menafn.com/1105750381/Azerbaijans-Ability-To-Cooperate-With-Neighbors-Determined-Its-Devt-Ex-UN-Resident-Coordinator">https://menafn.com/1105750381/Azerbaijans-Ability-To-Cooperate-With-Neighbors-Determined-Its-Devt-Ex-UN-Resident-Coordinator</a> and <a href="https://en.trend.az/azerbaijan/politics/3721219.html">https://en.trend.az/azerbaijan/politics/3721219.html</a>

Energy transformation makes Azerbaijan special - former UN resident coordinator. Interview by Emin Sevdimaliyev with Francis M. O'Donnell, Trend News Agency, Baku, 10 March 2023. <a href="https://en.trend.az/azerbaijan/politics/3721224.html">https://en.trend.az/azerbaijan/politics/3721224.html</a>

Clans differ on Red Hugh's final burial site, Donegal News, Letterkenny, 11 June 2020 <a href="https://donegalnews.com/2020/06/clans-differ-on-red-hughs-final-burial-site/">https://donegalnews.com/2020/06/clans-differ-on-red-hughs-final-burial-site/</a>

**Red Hugh O'Donnell merece ser enterrado en la Abadía de Donegal** ('Red' Hugh O'Donnell deserves to be buried in Donegal Abbey), interview by J.A. Pardal, published in El Norte de Castilla, 7 June 2020. <a href="https://www.elnortedecastilla.es/valladolid/hugh-odonnell-merece-20200607124959-nt.html">https://www.elnortedecastilla.es/valladolid/hugh-odonnell-merece-20200607124959-nt.html</a>

**У России нет никакого страшного оружия** ("Russia does not have any terrible weapons") interview by Jeyhun Najafov, published online by *Haqqin*, Baku, 20 March 2018: <a href="https://haqqin.az/democracy/125076">https://haqqin.az/democracy/125076</a>. The gist was that Russia was not about to engage in a world war, despite recent US/UK/French missile attacks on Syria.

Interview carried also on Russian media, Inosmi:

https://inosmi.ru/20180320/241753592.html

Press coverage of Panel on 'Threat of separatism to peace and security', in Brussels, moderated by O'Donnell and published by Azeri Daily, Baku, 20 November 2017: <a href="http://azeridaily.com/politics/33713">http://azeridaily.com/politics/33713</a>

Global Baku Forum is an important platform for discussing topical issues, interview by Azernews Agency, Baku, 13 March 2016:

https://www.azernews.az/nation/93966.html

also appeared on Azartac:

https://azertag.az/en/xeber/ 039Global Baku Forum is an important platform for discussing topical issues 039-935136

Press report on **Panel on Ukraine Crisis**, moderated by O'Donnell in Baku, 10 March 2016. <a href="http://en.apa.az/azerbaijan-politics/diaspora/panel-on-ukraine-crisis-held-as-part-of-iv-global-baku-forum-updated.html">http://en.apa.az/azerbaijan-politics/diaspora/panel-on-ukraine-crisis-held-as-part-of-iv-global-baku-forum-updated.html</a>

Interview about **Ukraine Crisis** on/Agallamh ar Adhmhaidin (*Clár cúrsaí reatha agus nuachta náisiúnta, idirnáisiúnta agus áitiúi*l) **Raidió na Gaeltachta**, 27 February 2014: <a href="https://www.rte.ie/rnag/adhmhaidin/programmes/2014/0227/506921-adhmhaidin-dardaoin-27-feabhra-2014/?clipid=1427406">https://www.rte.ie/rnag/adhmhaidin/programmes/2014/0227/506921-adhmhaidin-dardaoin-27-feabhra-2014/?clipid=1427406</a> Similar interviews given on **TodayFM**, 3 March 2014; **RTE Radio**; Serbian TV, **RTS**, 23 April 2014.

Interview on the activities of the Sovereign Military Order of Malta in Slovakia, with LUX TV, in Bratislava, Slovakia, on 24 June 2012.

Seanad Éireann electoral campaign, on-air live radio interview, on (as candidate nominated for constituency of National University of Ireland), on Radio Show "Today with Pat Kenny", RTÉ Radio 1, live from Buswells Hotel, Dublin 2, 31 March 2011.

**О'Доннелл** — **Карпачевой:** «Украина является якорем стабильности для всей **Европы».** (O'Donnell to Karpacheva: "Ukraine is an anchor of stability for the whole of Europe") published in **ForUm** Kyiv, 25 March 2009. <a href="https://m.for-ua.com/article/348827">https://m.for-ua.com/article/348827</a>

UN urges Ukraine to join key Holocaust education and remembrance body, article in International Herald Tribune, Monday January 28, 2008, based on Associated Press report quoting Francis O'Donnell.

UN Holocaust discussion in Ukraine, *breaking news* item on JTA (<u>www.jta.org</u>), quoting Francis O'Donnell, and reported on 30 January 2008. https://www.jta.org/2008/01/30/default/u-n-holocaust-discussion-in-ukraine

Corporate Social Responsibility, on-air live panel interview on Kyiv State TV Company, 16h20 on 23 October 2007, with host Andriy Matyukhin.

The Wide Angle, on-air live radio interview with Karen Colman on Newstalk106 Irish radio station, Dublin, Ireland, 30 September 2007.

Focus – on Corporate Social Responsibility, interview featured in the business magazine Commerce, Issue 14, July/August 2007, page 26, published for ACC by Edipresse Ukraine, LLC, Kyiv, Ukraine.

**It's time for a brighter future for Ukraine**, article by Richard Delevan, based on interview, published on the website <a href="www.tribune.ie">www.tribune.ie</a> for the **Sunday Tribune** newspaper in Ireland, for 8 April 2007.

Interview – Den Newspaper, Kiev, Ukraine, 20 March 2007

**The United Nations Development Programme – A Better Way?** By Craig N. Murphy, published by Cambridge University Press, Cambridge, UK, and New York, USA, 2006 (ISBN-13 978-0-521-68316-6, and ISBN-10 0-521-68316-5); *Interview* (on 11 March 2005) with Craig N. Murphy, recounted on page 341 (about Francis O'Donnell's role in East Timor).

**Ireland ranks fourth on list for human development**, article by Ruadhan Mac Cormaic, citing Frank O'Donnell, in *Home News* section of **Irish Times** newspaper, Dublin, Ireland, on 10 November 2006.

Blue Ribbon Report to improve well-being, front page main headline article based on interview with Francis M. O'Donnell, in Kyiv Weekly newspaper, no. 36 (211), 27 September 2006.

Chernobyl Twenty Years Later – by Anya Ardayeva and Lisa McAdams, includes remarks from interview with Francis O'Donnell, published by B92, Belgrade, Wednesday, 26 April 2006. <a href="https://www.b92.net/o/eng/news/world?yyyy=2006&mm=04&dd=26&nav\_id=34644&version=amp">https://www.b92.net/o/eng/news/world?yyyy=2006&mm=04&dd=26&nav\_id=34644&version=amp</a>

*On-air live radio interview* on **The Wide Angle**, with Karen Colman on **newstalk106 Irish radio station**, Dublin, Ireland, 1 April 2006.

**Imate razlog da slavite!** (You have reason to celebrate!) - Interview with Francis O'Donnell, in Serbian magazine **NIN**, no. 2852, pages 61-62 published in Belgrade, Serbia, on 25 August 2005.

**Lost chances**, interview on Ukrainian reforms, with Francis O'Donnell, by Sergei Gordienko, in Ukrainian newspaper, **Den**, no 118, 6 July 2005, Kiev, Ukraine.

A stepping stone to Europe, news feature on *Eurovision* in Ukraine, in Irish Times, 21 May 2005, Karen Fricker, quoting Frank O'Donnell.

**How to Rebuild the Ukraine: UN Report,** interview by Australian Broadcasting Corporation on National Radio Breakfast show, with O'Donnell detailing blueprint by the Blue Ribbon

Commission, a panel of national & international experts to advise incoming President Victor Yushchenko following the Orange Revolution. ABC, Sydney, 25 Jan 2005. <a href="https://www.abc.net.au/listen/programs/radionational-breakfast/how-to-rebuild-the-ukraine-un-report/3437056">https://www.abc.net.au/listen/programs/radionational-breakfast/how-to-rebuild-the-ukraine-un-report/3437056</a>

**Second round of mediation on Ukraine crisis,** *on-air live radio interview*, with Francis O'Donnell, on *Morning Ireland*, 1 December 2004, **RTÉ News**, Dublin, Ireland.

Црногорски Премилер Мило Ђукановић Примио Френсиса О Донела, Представника Програма За Разво Ун - Развоіна подршка Уієдиьених нациіа црногорским реформама - Побједа, Подгорица, 18 Abryct 2004 [Montenegrin Prime Minister Milo Dukanović Received Francis O'Donnell, Representative of the UN Development Program - United Nations Development Support to Montenegrin Reforms - Pobjeda, Podgorica, 18 August 2004 (cover and p.3]

You need a Vision! H.E. Francis M. O'Donnell, Resident Coordinator of the United Nations in Serbia & Montenegro, interview in CorD Magazine, Issue no. 2 (pp. 44-46), published by CMA (Consulting & Marketing Agency), Belgrade, February 2004 [ISSN 1451-7833]

Novac sigurniji u slamaricama - Frenk O'Donel Za "Blic" - Korupcija tera biznismene; Privatni biznis se ne razvija uz korupciju - Ulaganja u privredu, a ne u bezbednost pomogla bi državi a borbi protiv siromaštva, Intervju, Blic, Beograd, 18 Avgust 2003 [Money safer in mattresses - Frank O'Donnell For "Blic" - Corruption drives out businessmen; Private business does not develop with corruption. Investing in the economy, not in security, would help the state and the fight against poverty, Interview with Francis O'Donnell, Blic, Belgrade, 18 August 2003] Serbia-Montenegro, UN sign Accord on Civilian Monitoring of Army Reforms, Tanjug News Agency, Belgrade 17 July 2003 [carried on BBC and in Financial Times]

**Defence Ministry Launches International Cooperation for Military Reform with support from UNDP** – Foundation laid for greater democratic oversight and multi-donor support as country moves to join Euro-Atlantic Security Cooperation Structures (citing Boris Tadić and Francis M. O'Donnell). News Flash, UNDP, Belgrade 17 July 2003.

**The Phenomenon of Tycoons in Serbia & Montenegro** – Interview with Nina Nicović, given to. VIN TV Network on 19 May 2003, and broadcast on B92 TV on 23 May 2003 (transcript available)

FRENSIS O' DONEL, stalni koordinator svih UN agencija u Srbiji i Crnoj Gori: Neverovatno ste napredovali u postovanju ljudskih prava, ali... Nedelni Telegraf, Beograd, 07 Mai 2003 [Francis O'Donnell, Resident Coordinator of all UN agencies in Serbia and Montenegro: You have made incredible progress in respecting human rights, but... Nedelni Telegraf, Belgrade, 07 May 2003]

Слизеди програм за 2004 годину - Председник Скупштине Црне Горе Филип Вуановиђ Разговарао Са Шефом Канцеларие Ун За Развол Френсисом О'донелом Побледа, Подгорица, четбртак, 27 фебруар 2003 [Upcoming Programme for 2004 - The President of the Assembly of Montenegro, Filip Vujanović, Talked With The Head of the UN Development Office, Francis O'Donnell - Pobleda, Podgorica, Thursday, 27 February 2003]

**Подршка реформама** - Председник Владе Црне Горе Мило Ђукановиђ Примио Шефа Канцеларие Програма За Разво Ун У Србили И Црно Гори, Френсиса О'донела [Support for

reforms - Montenegro Prime Minister Milo Đukanoviđ Received The Head Of The United Nations Development Programme Office In Serbia And Montenegro, Francis O'Donnell, Pobleda, Podgorica, Thursday, 27 February 2003]

Одводене посете - Шефа Канцелариј е Програма за развој Уједињених на-циа у Београду Френсиса О'Донелиза, примили су у одвојене посјете министар иностраних послова Црне Горе Драгиша Бурзан, министар за економске односе са иностранством и европске интеграције Славица МилачиЂ и министар рада и социалног старава Славолуб СтијеповиЂ, стози у саопштену. [Visits - The Head of the United Nations Development Programme Office in Belgrade, Francis O'Donnell, was received in separate visits by the Minister of Foreign Affairs of Montenegro, Dragiša Burzan, the Minister of Foreign Economic Relations and European Integration, Slavica Milačić, and the Minister of Labor and Social Affairs, Slavolub Stijepović, the statement said - Pobleda, Podgorica, Thursday, 27 February 2003]

После Трагичних Догабаја У Америци - Поново Откривање Оун - Свет уедиЊен у борби против тероризма спремнији је да се заједнички одупре и другим глобалним проблемима као што су глад, беда, угрожена животна средина...., каже за "Политику" Френсис О'Донел, представник Програма УН за развої (УНДП) у Југославији, Политика, Београд, Недельа 21. Октобар 2001, Бро 31600 - Година XCVIII [9/11 - After The Tragic Events In America -Rediscovering the UN - The world united in the fight against terrorism is more prepared to jointly resist other global problems such as hunger, poverty, endangered environment..., says Francis O'Donnell, representative of the UN Development Program (UNDP) in Yugoslavia, for "Politika" (includes his first-hand experience watching Twin Towers collapse in Manhattan on 9/11, and social aftermath there); Politika, Belgrade, Sunday, October 21, 2001].

**A Day in the Life.** published in **UCD Connections**, worldwide magazine of University College Dublin Alumni, inaugural issue no.1 Spring/Summer 1997 (ISSN 0791-8747), Dublin, 1997.

## ART, POETRY AND MUSIC (WRITTEN, COMPOSED, UNPUBLISHED)

**POETRY -** A Compendium, of over 300 poems, written from 1960s onward, a small portion of which was published in **No Man's Land -** *Selected Poetry & Art*, Tyrconnell-Fyngal Publications, Dalkey, Ireland, 2020 [more to be published in near future] https://www.academia.edu/42201810/No Mans Land Selected Poetry and Art Extract

**The Azure Suite**, A collection of piano and orchestral compositions by Francis M. O'Donnell (largely unpublished but composed in Vienna in late 2010).

Extract, accompanying video of art works, in **Music & Mind**, 6 December 2016: <a href="https://www.facebook.com/francismartin.odonnell/videos/1194274703987398">https://www.facebook.com/francismartin.odonnell/videos/1194274703987398</a>

#### **Intangible Cultural Heritage**, 8 December 2016:

https://www.facebook.com/groups/1644872492434959?hoisted\_section\_header\_type=recently\_seen&multi\_permalinks=1805119083076965

Selection for **O'Donnell Clan Association**, 6 August 2019: https://www.facebook.com/francismartin.odonnell/videos/2393615777386612

Published on **Sapere Aude**, 9 April 2022. (это проект о событиях, тенденциях и явлениях глобального мира. Мы уверены, что невозможно понять себя и свою страну, а тем более преодолеть трудности или запустить перемены к лучшему, оставаясь равнодушным к происходящему на всей планете. В мире все взаимосвязано, и без общей ответственности, солидарности и взаимоуважения каждый становится только более уязвимым).

https://www.facebook.com/groups/250049793173550/?hoisted\_section\_header\_type=recently\_seen&multi\_permalinks=520210472824146

# PRIVATE (NON-PROFESSIONAL, LARGELY UNPUBLISHED, PENDING)

A Reference Guide to the Collected Works of the late Patrick Denis O'Donnell (1922-2005) - A catalogue of an estimated 10,000 articles written over a period of 60 years, most of which were published in various journals, periodicals, or other collections [under preparation since 2011].

**Donal Oge** – *Legend and Legacy*. The story of Donal Oge O'Donnell, a historical-genealogical treatise spanning four centuries of this family, its origins, and links to the Flight of the Earls in 1607, including the impact and illegality of the attainder of 1614, and consequences for the exile of the last Gaelic rulers in Ireland, and the Irish Diaspora, and residual heritage challenges (504pp; Dublin, 2016; printed limited edition for peer review, leading eventually to publication of *The O'Donnells of Tyrconnell* – *A Hidden Legacy* in 2018/9),

**L'Esprit de Titre** – *from Power and Prestige to Virtual Vestige*; a detailed study of the Baronage of Ireland and ancient titles as incorporeal hereditaments in Ireland; a more detailed analysis of proposed law reforms and their impact on ancient Anglo-Norman incorporeal hereditaments, along with a treatment of the historical evolution of those titles, their survival, and their legal status as intangible cultural heritage, and how they might best be preserved in law, through international conventions, national registration, and heraldic recognition. (71pp; Dublin, March 2006) (Copy shared with the Earl of Rosse, and listed in the *Calendar of the Rosse Papers*, edited by A.P.W. Malcomson, published by the Irish Manuscripts Commission, Dublin, 2008 (ISBN: 978-1-874280-69-9) <a href="https://catalogue.nli.ie/Record/vtls000270174">https://catalogue.nli.ie/Record/vtls000270174</a>

The Survival of Ancient Titles as Incorporeal Hereditaments in Ireland – Abolishing feudal tenure whilst preserving intangible cultural heritage; a detailed analysis of the former draft Bill on Land Reform and Conveyancing prepared by the Law Reform Commission, and its impact on ancient Anglo-Norman incorporeal hereditaments, along with a treatment of the historical evolution of those titles, their survival, and their legal status, both as interests in land, as well as intangible cultural heritage and how they might best be preserved in law, including through international conventions, continued national registration, and heraldic recognition. Submitted to the Law Reform Commission, the Royal Irish Academy, and the Committee on Genealogy and Heraldry of the National Library of Ireland. In due course, the Land and Conveyancing Law Reform Act, no.27 of 2009, preserved those interests as incorporeal hereditaments. [37pp; December 2005]

**Index of Ancient Irish Baronies and Manorial Lordships** – a detailed matrix of these titles giving denomination, location, *fons honoris* or grantor, date of grant, grantee, and detailed source references [early draft 10 pages, 27 December 2005; unfinished].

The Paramount Barony of Fyngal and the Lordship of Fyngallestoun - a history of the provenance and succession of old Anglo-Norman titles of the recusant Catholic Anglo-Irish

aristocracy granted respectively by King John in 1208 and King Edward II in 1318; Fingal became a County in the administrative reorganisation of Ireland in 1994] [draft of Dec. 2001; unfinished]

**Senescallus Tirconnalliae**, an account of the stewardship of Tyrconnell from earliest times following the settlement of Connall, through the Kingdom, Principality, and Earldom, and derivative lordships held by the O'Donnells, as well as the Jacobite Duchy of Tyrconnell (Talbot), the Marquessate of Donegal (Chichester), to modern times, and restitution of the Lord Stewardship of Tyrconnell on the occasion of the 400<sup>th</sup> anniversary of the Battle of Kinsale and the ensuing Irish Diaspora [under preparation].

\*\*\*\*\*

Caveat! Any errors in the above listing are entirely the responsibility of Francis M. O'Donnell and may be communicated to him by email.

[Version: 28 July 2025]